

CAPRO

CONSORTIUM OF ASIA-PACIFIC EDUCATION UNIVERSITIES (CAPEU)

kin Conversity | Curtin Linconsity Parth | Sysian Kanda University | Ar-Raniry State University | Indonesia Education | Medan State | University | Indonesia Education | Medan State | Iniversity | Parth | State | Iniversity | Indonesia Education | Medan State | Iniversity | Indonesia Education | Medan State | Iniversity | Indonesia Education | Medan State | Iniversity | Indonesia Education | Surabaya State University | Indonesia Education | Surabaya State University | Iniversity | Surabaya State University | University | Surabaya State University | Iniversity | Iniversity

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Deakin University Melbourne May 2015





CONSORTIUM OF ASIA-PACIFIC EDUCATION UNIVERSITIES (CAPEU)

Contents

- 2 From the President
- **3** From the Secretary
- 6 Board of Directors (April 2013 April 2015)
- 7 Members of CAPEU
- 9 Activities of CAPEU April 2013- April 2015
- **13** Membership Fees
- 14 Roundtable Meeting, May 11, 2015
 - Presentation of Quality of Teacher Training among Members of CAPEU
 - Education for the unreachable Children-Education
- 15 Annual General Meeting, May 12, 2015
 - **16** Approval of the First BoD Meeting (April 22, 2013)
 - 19 Financial Reports
 - Meeting Dissolved & Election of New BoD CAPEU 2015-2017
 - Speech by the New Presdient CAPEU 2015-2017

FROM THE PRESIDENT



Professor Dato' Dr. Zakaria Kasa President, CAPEU & Vice Chancellor of Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris

On behalf ot the Consortium of Asia-Pacific Education Universities (CAPEU), it gives me a great pleasure to welcome all of you to the CAPEU Roundtable and 2nd Annual General Meeting. CAPEU attracts over 20 leaders from across the Asia Pacific, Europe and United States of America.

For the last two years, CAPEU has provided a platform for open dialogue among members, broaden knowledge, enhance mutual understanding, discuss issues and strategies and significant education developments. It is our hope that the ensuing discussion will contribute to a better appreciation of the different viewpoints, as well as produce important recommendations for the benefit of leaders and policy-makers in the Asia Pacific regions.

We wish to express our sincere gratitude to the distinguished role players for their knowledge, expertise and time, in various ways, be it in delivering keynote speeches, moderating sessions or in discussing issues as panel members. Last but not least, we wish to convey our sincere appreciation to all contributors for their continued support and active participation. As always, we can expect them to make a very positive contribution towards enhancing the richness of the discussion at the various CAPEU activities.

FROM THE SECRETARY



Prof. Dato' Dr. Noraini Idris Secretary of BoD of CAPEU and Deputy Vice Chancellor (Research and Innovation). Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris

The dawn of the 21st century has ushered in a new era of invention, innovation and development. The aura pervades across various realms of knowledge and skills. It also envelops the field of education which is constantly expanding its horizons. As an institution of higher learning, the main mission is to accelerate excellence in education. CAPEU has shown involvement in a variety of education activities. This involvement could not have yielded results without the hard work of the members.

We are glad to inform the members of this consortium that we have designed and developed quite many activities that benefit members and its countries. We do hope that we will be able to do more for the years to come. In addition to founding members, we have members registered, from Malaysia, the Philippines, Indonesia, Thailand, Australia, and from USA. More universities in Indonesian have informed joining the consortium soon.

Exchange programs in the form of reciprocal seem to be preferable by members of the consortium. Mapping programs workshop was conducted between members of the consortium to formally exchange programs reciprocally between members.

ASEAN partnership has been a key agenda for all leaders of ASEAN. CAPEU should utilize many of the opportunities provided by the leaders of ASEAN countries, either in academics, research, community development, education, and cross-cultural understanding among societies including Australia. ASEAN is also urging a teachers' exchange program in its multilateral relations, and CAPEU is one of the best venues for such exchanges.

BOARD OF DIRECTOR CAPEU 2013-2015

PRESIDENT CAPEU

Prof. Dr. Dato' Zakaria Kasa Vice Chancellor, Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris (UPSI) Tanjong Malim, Perak, Malaysia

VICE PRESIDENT 1 CAPEU

Prof. Dr. Ian Morris Robottom Assoc. Dean for International Relations Deakin University, Melboune, Australia

VICE PRESIDENT 2 CAPEU

Prof. Dr. Sunaryo Kartidinata Rector, Universitas Pendidikan Indonesia (UPI)

SECRETARY 1 CAPEU

Prof. Dato' Dr. Noraini Idris Deputy Vice Chancellor for Research and Innovation, UPSI

SECRETARY 2 CAPEU

Prof Dr. Ir. Samsul Rizal Unversitas Syiah Kuala, Aceh, Indonesia

TREASURER OF CAPEU

Prof. Dr. Noor Shah Saad Faculty of Education & Human Development, UPSI

SECRETARIAT CAPEU

Asso. Prof. Dr. Qissmullah Yusof Faculty of Education & Human Development, UPSI

COMMITTEE

Prof. Dr. Rochmat Wahab Rector, Universitas Negeri Yogyakarta

Prof. Dr. H. Fasrid Wajidi Ibrahim Rector Ar-raniry Islamic Institute, Aceh Prof. Dr. Fathur Rochman Rector, Semarang State University Semarang, Indonesai

Prof. Dr H. Arismunandar Rector, Makassar State University Makassar, Indonesia

Prof. Dr. Muchlas Samani Rector, Surabaya State University Surabaya, Indonesia

Prof. Dr. Phil Yanuar Kiram Rector, Universitas Negeri Padang Padang

Prof. Dr. Syawal Gultom Rector, Medan State University Medan, Indonesia

Dr. Hjh. Masnon Hj. Ibrahim Rais, Seri Begawan Religious Teachers's University, Brunei (KUPU)

Prof. Dr. Ester B. Ogena President, Phillippine Normal University Manila, Phillippine

Prof. Dato' Seri Dr. Muhammad Mustafa Isahak Vice Chansellor, Universiti Utara Malaysia, Malaysia

Prof. Dato' Dr. Zaleha Kamaruddin Rector, International Islamic University, Malaysia

Prof. Dr. Abdul Wahab Rector, Fatoni University, Yala, Thailand

Dr. Guiod Scheniders German Academic Exchange Services Kuala Lumpur

MEMBERS OF CAPEU

MEMBER

Fatony University Yala. Thailand

Burapha University Chiang Mai, Thailand

Philippines Normal University Manila, Philippines

College University Teacher Training Bandar Seri Begawan, Brunei Darussalam

Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris Tanjong Malim, Perak, Malaysia

University Utara Malaysia Sintok, Kedah, Malaysia

International Islamic University Malaysia Gombak, Selangor, Malaysia

Deakin University. Melbourne, Australia

Curtin University Perth, Australia

Syiah Kuala University Banda Aceh, Indonesia

Ar-Raniry State University Banda Aceh, Indonesia

Malikussaleh University Lhokseumawe, Aceh, Indonesia

Medan State University Medan, Indonesia

Padang State University Padang, Indonesia

Sriwijava University Palembang, Indonesia

Indonesia Education University Bandung Indonesia

Semarang State University Semarang, Indonesia

Yogjakarta State University Yogjakarta, Indonesia

Surabaya State University Surabava, Indonesia

Bali (Ganesha) State University Bali. Indonesia

Makassar State University Makassar, Indonesia

Universitas Islam Kalimantan Banjarmasin, Indonesia

OBSERVER

Gorontalo State University Gorontalo, Indonesia

Papua State University Manokwari Indonesia

Raja Ali Haji Maritime University Pangkal Pinang, Riau, Indonesia

Jakarta State University Jakarta Indonesia

Lambung Mangkurat University Banjarmasin, Indonesia

Antasari State University Banjarmasin, Indonesia

Muhammadiyah University Palangkaraya, Indonesia

Palangkaraya State University Palangkaraya, Indonesia

PARTNER

Deakin University Melbourne Australia

German Academic Exchange Services Bonn Germany

Miyagi University of Education Miyagi, Japan

East-West Center Honolulu, Hawaii, United States of America



CONSORTIUM OF ASIA-PACIFIC EDUCATION UNIVERSITIES (CAPEU)

YEAR IN REVIEW 2013-2015

ACTIVITIES

April 2013 - April 2015

1... The 16 program of CAPEU was launched (April 23, 2013).

Before the eyes of all key management of all members of CAPEU, the 16 programs of CAPEU were launched and officiated by Prof. Dr. Siraj to commemorate the opening of the consortium. This was a historical moments for all rectors/presidents of CAPEU members.

The followings were the programs that had beenimplemented between all members of CAPEU since April 2013 - April 2015.

1.1 Students' Exchanges

i) Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris (UPSI) Malaysia and Syiah Kuala University, Aceh, Indonesia.

> Students' exchanges programs that have been taken placed between Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris (UPSI) - Syiah Kuala University (SKU) in Banda Aceh.

Exchange Program between Lab Schools of CAPEU (1-12 April 2014)

This was a two-week Students' Exchnage Program between FPPM School partners and Syiah Kuała University lab schools or schools that have special academic and research ties in academic and research with the Faculty of Education and Teacher Training and Syiah Kuala University. The schools that were involved from Aceh were:

- SMA Lab School of Syiah Kuala a. University
- b. SMA Fajar Harapan
- c. Fatih Bilingual School (Boys)
- d. Fatih Bilingual School (Girls)
- SMA Modal Bangsa

As many as 36 students of Kuala Kubu Baharu participated in the reciprocal program. They spent the time not only at the dorms of the schools but also immerged with the students of the above schools by being students of the above schools for 8 school days. It is expected that similar program will be made by Aceh schools with the Mara Kuala Kubu Baharu school.

ii) **Training on Disaster Management**

A week training on Emergency Evacuation for teachers' candidates teaching at Malaysian coastal lines were provided by the Faculty of Mathematics and Sciences and the Disaster Management Center of Syiah Kuala University & the Banda Aceh National SAR's Office. Training fees. accommodation and meals were arranged by Syiah Kuala University as a part of Reciprocal program. As many as 32 students from UPSI participated in this program. The program was officially opened by the Deputy Rector for Relations Affairs of Sviah Kuala University and closed by the Dean of the Faculty of Mathematics and Sciences who was also the director of the Center for Research and Studies on Risk Reduction Management of Sviah Kuala University. The cost for training was provided by Syiah Kuala University and also by the Banda Aceh SAR's Office.

1.2 **Faculty Exchanges**

Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris (UPSI), Malaysia and Syiah Kuala University (SKU), Aceh

a) Prof. Dato' Dr. Tengku Mohani binti Tengku Mokhtar from the Faculty of Languages and Communication of UPSI has been appoited as Adjunct Professor at Syiah Kuala University, Aceh. Asso. Prof. Dr. Qissmulah Yusof is an exchange teaching staff member between SKU and UPSI untill February 3, 2017.

1.3 Regular Conference

The member university may request the management of the consortium to hold seminar, workshop and other form of academic meeting, at least once a year, and call for papers from faculty and students of members of consortium. The consortium should waive or reduce fees for any faculty or students from members of the consortium to participate in the seminars. It can be held in campus or outside of campus, depending on the facilities available in each member university and the budget.

i. First conference on Special Education (4-6 September, 2013)

This conference was hosted by Syiah Kuala University, Aceh and Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris and sponsored by The Government of Aceh. The theme of the conference was "Diversity in Special Education Issues and Challenges in the First Quarter of the Millennium" was held at Syiah Kuala University in Banda Aceh, Indonesia.

Prof. Dr. Fingerlee from Germany to be a keynote speaker from the conference and Deakin University sent Prof. Dr. Kidman to be key note speaker for the same conference. UPSI sent Prof. Dr. Zakaria Kasa, the Vice Chancellor of UPSI to be keynote speaker for the conference at Syiah Kuala University in Banda Aceh.

ii) The Second Conference on Teacher Education (24-25 November, 2014)

The conference was hosted by Kolej Universiti Perguruan Ugama (KUPU), Brunei and sponsored by the Ministry of Religious Affairs of Brunei Darussalam and the Ministry of Education of Brunei Darussalam. It was officially opened by the Ministry of Religious Affairs and officially closed by the Ministry of Education of Brunei Darussalam. The theme of the conference was "Teacher Education in Islamic Perspectives" was held at Indera Samudera Hall, Empire Hotel & Country Club, Brunei Darussalam.

The conference was participated by almost 500 participants from countries in South EastAsian nations in addition to participants from CAPEU Members. A resolution was made by the Conference Committee and presented it the two ministers in Brunei Darussalam.

1.4 Graduate Students Research Symposium

Deakin University, Melbourne, Australia and Sultan Idris Education University

- i. The first Graduate Students Research Symposium between Deakin University and Sultan Idris Education University was conducted form April 3-6, 2014 at Deakin University. 22 Graduate students from UPSI and 13 students from Deakin University presented their research proposal and research finding. It was conducted at Geelong Campus in Melbourne, Australia.
- ii. The Second Graduate Students Research Symposium UPSI-Deakin Symposium was conducted at UPSI from Oct. 29 Nov. 2, 2014. The venue for the symposium was the University Grand Theatre at the Proton City Campus. There were 14 papers presented from Deakin University and 28 papers from UPSI. It was participated by about 300 graduate students from UPSI and about 100 teachers of schools in the state of Perak where UPSI is located.

The participants of the symposium demanded that similar symposium be made regularly and reciprocally between the two universities, here at UPSI or at Deakin University. The demands were not only from the teachers around the campus but also from the graduate students of UPSI and the lecturers from the two universities. Many of students who presented their papers at the symposium had shown their leaderships in managing the audiences and in maturing their presentation experiences at the symposium.

Sabbatical Leave Program 1.5

- ï. Assoc. Prof. Dr. Jane Teng Yan Fang, a faculty member of the Faculty of Economics and Management of Sultan Idris Education University had returned from East-West Center in Hawaii and now resume her teaching at her faculty.
- ii. Assos. Prof. Goh Swee Che just returned from Deakin University after spending almost 9 months sabbatical leave at the university.
- iii. Assoc. Prof. Dr. Siti Eishah Moekhsien is now at Deakin University conducting her sabbatical leave for the same period as Dr. Goh.
- İ۷. Dr. Ikhsan from FPPM is now at Syiah Kuala University conducting his Sabbatical Leave at the university. He will be there for a period of 6 months.

1.6 **Professional Teacher Training Program**

Professional Development for School Administrators, Mathematics & Science Teachers

į, The members of the consortium can also develop joint training programs to train teachers, principals, school administrators, and other professions related to education at any member of the consortium in which trainers are selected from professional staff from members of the consortium. Through MoU signed between Government of Aceh and Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris for instances, two batches of math and science teachers and principals of modeling schools from Aceh have been trained by UPSI (with venues in Aceh and Malaysia) without taking any profits. The trainings were conducted on the basis of "CSR-corporate social responsibilities" of the Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris.

ii. Mapping Program Workshop (Appendix 2)

In order that all members of CAPEU have programs to be developed and executed bilaterally or multilaterally **CAPEU** conducted mapping program workshop between members. It was participated by 10 members of CAPEU and each member sent two participants to participate in the workshop. It was hold at UPSI in Tanjong Malim, Malaysia on Oct. 30-Nov. 1, 2014.

iii. Thinking **Based** Learning (TBL) Workshop

As agreed in the Mapping program at UPSI, Thinking Based Learning (TBL) workshop was conducted from October 6-12, 2014. Deakin University as a partner, sent Prof. Dr. James Campbell, an expert in TBL, to be a key trainer for the training. The training was also assisted by local trainers: Assoc. Prof. Dr. Maria binti Salih, Assoc. Prof. Dr. Siti Eishah Mokhsien, Assoc. Prof. Dr. Qismullah Yusuf, Dr. Muhammad Yusuf and Dr. Muhammad Mai.

1.7 Joint Research and Publications

In addition to establishing collaborations between CAPEU members the consortium developed cooperation with member universities in conducting joint research funded bilaterally or trilaterally between the core members and also with other party interested in the projects. To enable the consortium in managing the joint research and publications there should be a committee established by the consortium and appoint a country/ university/ institution to manage all researches and publications written by faculties from members of the consortium, partner universities and from writers outside of the consortium. The first Journal between members of the consortium will be launched and. Deakin University, as the partner of the consortium will jointly published the journal and is the editor for the journal. Name of the CAPEU journal The Journal of the Consortium of Asia Pacific Education Universities and special issues on "Contemporary Issues in Special Educational Needs", Volume 1, April 2015 (Appendix 3)

1.8 Board of Director Meeting

i. The 2nd Board of Directors' Meeting of CAPEU (September 2013)

The Second Board of Directors' Meeting held at Syiah Kuala University. The venue was at the Senate Meeting Room at Rectorate Office of Syiah Kuala University. It was participated by 12 members of CAPEU.

ii. The 3rd Board of Directors' Meeting at Bandung (June 24, 2014)

The 3th BoD Meeting was held at the Indonesia Education University in Bandung, Indonesia, on the second day after the UPI-UPSI Conference at the UPI Senate Meeting Room. It was hosted by UPI and led by Vice Chancellor of UPSI as the President of CAPEU, assisted by the Rector of UPI bandung, by the Secretary of CAPEU, Deputy Rector for Academic Affairs and Deputy Rector for Relations Affairs of Universitas Pendidikan Indonesia in Bandung, Indonesia.

iii. The 4th BoD Meeting at KUPU (November 24, 2014)

The fourth BoD Meeting of CAPEU was conducted on November 24, 2014 at the KUPU (Kolej University Perguruan Ugama), Brunei Darussalam. It was held at the University Senate Room of KUPU. It was participated by 11 members of the consortium, chaired by the President of CAPEU, the Secretary of CAPEU and the host of the BoD Meeting, Dr. Hajjah Masnon bin Hj. Ibrahim, the Rector of KUPU.

MEMBERSHIP FEES CONSORTIUM OF ASIA PACIFIC EDUCATION UNIVERSITIES (CAPEU)

APRIL 17, 2013 - APRIL 30, 2015

| No. | Date | REMARKS ON THE PAYMENT | AMOUNT (RM) | INSTITUTION | EXPIRED DATE |
|-----|------------|------------------------------|----------------|--|-----------------|
| 1.; | 17/04/2013 | JL130400466 | 10,000.00 | UNIVERSITI PENDIDIKAN SULTAN IDRIS | 16/04/2015 |
| 2. | 14/06/2013 | JL130600318 | 9.004.50 | DEAKIN UNIVERSITY, MELBOURNE, AUSTRALIA | 13/06/2015 |
| 3. | 30/08/2013 | JL130800548 | 9,861.00 | UNIVERSITAS NEGERI SEMARANG, INDONESIA | 29/08/2015 |
| 4. | 31/12/2013 | JL31201580 | 9,811.50 | UNIVERSITAS NEGERI YOGJAKARTA, INDONESIA | 30/12/2015 |
| 5. | 31/12/2013 | JL31201497 | 9,793.50 | UNIVERSITAS SYIAH KUALA, ACEH, INDONESIA | 30/12/2015 |
| 6. | 31/12/2013 | JL31201497 | 9,703.50 | UNIVERSITAS NEGERI SURABAYA, INDONESIA | 30/12/2015 |
| 7,. | 31/12/2013 | JL31201497 | 9,578.47 | KOLEJ UNIVERSITI PERGURUAN UGAMA, BRUNEI | 30/12/2015 |
| 8. | 31/12/2013 | JL31201498 | 9,483.00 | UNIVERSITAS PENDIDIKAN INDONESIA, INDONESIA | 30/12/2015 |
| 9. | 28/01/2014 | JL140100633 | 9,910.50 | UNIVERSITAS NEGERI MAKASSAR, INDONESIA | 27/01/2016 |
| 10. | 04/04/2014 | JL140400114 | 9,555.30 | INTERNATIONAL ISLAMIC UNIVERSITY MALAYSIA | 03/04/2016 |
| 11. | 28/05/2014 | JL140500808 | 9,864.00 | UNIVERSITI UTARA MALAYSIA, MALAYSIA | 27/05/2016 |
| 12, | 27/11/2014 | RT41100238 | 9,000.00 | FATONI ISLAMIC UNIVERSITY, YALA, THAILAND | 26/10/2016 |
| 13. | 28/11/2014 | JI141100720 | 9,894.00 | MEDAN STATE UNIVERSITY, MEDAN, INDONESIA | 27/11/2016 |
| 14. | 19/12/2014 | JL141200529 | 10,257.71 | PHILIPPINE NORMAL UNIVERSITY, MANILA, PHILIPPINE | 18/12/2016 |
| | T | OTAL | 135,716.98 | | |



CONSORTIUM OF ASIA-PACIFIC EDUCATION UNIVERSITIES (CAPEU)

ROUNDTABLE MEETING

Time: 9.00 am | Date: May 11, 2015

9.00 am

Welcoming Speech by the Vice Chancellor of Deakin University, Host of the 5th BoD Meeting of CAPEU

Welcoming Speech by the President of CAPEU
Vice Chancellor of UPSI

9.30 am

Quality of Teacher Training among Members of CAPEU (Presentation)

- 1. Prof. Dr. Sunaryo Kartasasmita Indonesia
- 2. Prof. Dr. Ian Robottom Australia
- 3. Prof. Dato Dr. Noraini Idris Malaysia

Lunch

2.00 pm

Education for the Unreachable Children-Education Attache Indonesia Embassy KL



CONSORTIUM OF ASIA-PACIFIC EDUCATION UNIVERSITIES (CAPEU)

Committed to changes in Teacher Training and Education, Research & **Community Development**

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

- 1.0 Welcoming Speech by the Chancellor of Deakin University Host University of the CAPEU
- 2.0 Welcoming Speech by the President of CAPEU Vice Chancellor of UPSI
- 3.0 Approval of the First BoD Meeting (April 22, 2013- Appendix 1)
- 4.0 **Financial Reports**
- 5.0 **Meeting Dissolved**
- 6.0 Election of New Board of Directors CAPEU
 - President
 - Vice president 1
 - Vice president 2
 - Secretary 1
 - Secretary 2
 - Treasurer
 - Secretariat
 - Committee
- 7.0 Speech by the New President of CAPEU (2015-2017)



MINUTES OF THE 1ST BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING OF CONSORTIUM OF ASIA-PACIFIC EDUCATION **UNIVERSITIES** (CAPEU)

Date

22 April 2013

Day

Monday

Time

10.45 am

Venue

Intercontinental Hotel, Kuala Lumpur

(Embassy of Indonesia)

ATTENDANCE

Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris Prof. Dato' Dr. Zakaria Kasa 1 Prof. Dato' Dr. Noraini Idris 2 Dato' Paduka Dr. Junaidi Abu Bakar 3 Assoc. Prof. Dr. Noor Shah Saad

- Assoc. Prof. Dr. Qismullah Yusuf
- Dr. Rosnidar binti Mansor 6
- Dr. Kannamah Mottan 7
- 8 Prof. Madya Dr. Siti Eshah Mokshein
- Dr. Uzi bin Dollah 9

Universitas Syiah Kuala Banda Aceh Prof. Dr. Ir. Samsul Rizal 10

- Wildan Bin Abdullah 11
- Dr. Jufri, M.Pd 12
- Dr.Muklis, M.Ed 13
- Dr. Bahrun, M.Pd 14
- Prof. Dr. H. Farid Wajdi Ibrahim, MA 15
- Prof. Dr. Syahrizal Abbas, MA., 16
- Dr. H. Muhibbuthabry, M.Ag., 17

Ar-Raniry Islamic Institute

| 18 | Dr. Muhammad Nasir, M. Hum. | |
|----|--------------------------------------|---|
| 19 | Saifullah, S. Pd. I. MA | |
| 20 | Dr. Apridar , SE, M.Si | Universitas Malikulsaleh Lhokseumawe |
| 21 | Iskandar Zulkarnaen | |
| 22 | Muhammad Haikal | |
| 23 | Rita Meutia, M.Si | |
| 24 | Prof. Dr. Sunaryo Kartaninata, M.Pd | Universitas Pendidikan Indonesia, Bandung |
| 25 | Prof. Furqon, MA, Ph.D | |
| 26 | Sri Harto | |
| 27 | Prof. Dr. Ibnu Hajar | Universitas Negeri Medan |
| 28 | Dr. Khairil Ansari, M.Pd | |
| 29 | Prof. Dr. H. Eko. Hadi Sujiono, M.Si | Universitas Negeri Makassar |
| 30 | Abdullah Pandang Ali | |
| 31 | Prof. Dr. Muchlas Samani | Universitas Negeri Surabaya |
| 32 | Prof. Dr. Nurhasanm M. Kes | |
| 33 | Prof. Dr. Badia Perizade, M. B. A | Universitas Sriwijaya Palembang |
| 34 | Ahmad Muslim, Ph.D. | |
| 35 | Soefendi Ph.D | |
| 36 | Assoc. Prof. Dr. Montree Yamkasikorn | Burapha University, Chonburi |
| 37 | Mr. Abdurrahman bin Weayusoh | Yala Islamic University |
| 38 | Prof. Dr. David Wood | Curtin University Perth |
| 39 | Prof. Dr. Walter Ong | |
| 40 | Dr. Irene Jansen | DAAD-Jakarta |
| 41 | Prof. Dr. Ian Morris Robottom | DEAKIN University Melbourne |
| 42 | Oleksandr Kostogryz | |
| 43 | Dr. Terance W. Bigalke | East-West Center Hawaii |
| 44 | Dr. Hajjah Masnon binti Haji Ibrahim | Universiti Perguruan Ugama Seri Begawan |
| 45 | Prof. Dr. Phil Yanuar Kiram | Universitas Padang |
| 46 | Dr. Alizamar, M. Pd | |
| 47 | Dr. Syahrial Bakhtiar, M. Pd | |
| 48 | Dr. Ardipal, M. Pd | |
| 49 | Prof. Dr. I Nyoman Sudiana, M. Pd | Universitas Pendidikan Ganesha |
| 50 | Dr. I Wayan Muderawan, M. S., Ph.D | |
| 51 | Prof. Dr. Rusdi Thaib | Indonesian Embassy Kuala Lumpur |
| 52 | Pn. Zubaidah | Brunei Darussalam Embassy |
| 53 | Prof. Dr. Rochmat Wahab | Universitas Negeri Yogyakarta |
| 54 | Prof. Dr. Fathur Rokhman, M. Hum | Universitas Negeri Semarang |
| | | |

CHAIRMAN'S OPENING REMARKS

The meeting started with the recitation of Surah Al-Fatihah. The chairperson/chairman welcomed all members to the meeting and thanked those who were coming.

The Chairman then get acquainted with all the members of the meeting.

2.0 CAPEU's LOGO

- Below was the the suggestion discussed in the meeting: 2.1
 - Change CAPEU to APCEU
 - Change the map to be of the Asia Pacific Region only.
 - Change the color of the logo
 - Insert dots i the acronym of the consortium

(Unanimously agreed and to be discussed further by the secretariat)

THE APPOINTMENT OF EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS 3.0

- The meeting agreed the Chairmans's position/post to be held by the VC of UPSI for two 3.1 years commencing April 2013.
- The following was the nominations for the position in the executive board: 3.2

CAPEU Board of Directors

President

Prof. Dato' Dr. Zakaria Kasa (UPSI)

Vice President Prof. Dr. Ian Morris Robottom (Deakin University)

Prof. Dr. Sunaryo Kartadinata (UPI)

Secretary

Prof. Dato' Dr. Noraini Idris (UPSI)

Prof. Dr. Ir. Samsul Rizal (Universitas Syiah Kuala)

Treasurer

Assoc. Prof. Dr. Noor Shah Saad (UPSI)

Secretariat

Assoc. Prof. Dr. Qismullah Yusuf (UPSI)

Members

1. Prof. Dr. Phil. Yanuar Kiram (Universitas Negeri Padang)

2. Prof. Dr. H. Fasrid Wajdi Ibrahim, MA. (Ar-Raniry Islamic Institute, Aceh)

3. Prof. Dr. Muchlas Samani (Universitas Negeri Surabaya)

4. Prof. Dr. Rochmat Wahab (Universitas Negeri Yogyakarta)

5. Prof. Dr. David Wood (Curtin University)

6. Mr. Abdurrahman Woder (Yala Islamic University)

7. Assoc. Prof. Dr. Winmorat Chaturanon (Burapha University)

8. Dato' Paduka Dr. Junaidi Abu Bakar (UPSI)

9. Dr. Hajah Masnon Haji Ibrahim (Universiti Perguruan Ugama Seri Begawan)

(Information and Unanimously agreed on the appointments)

4.0 DISCUSSION ON MISSION AND VISION OF THE CONSORTIUM

- 4.1 All suggestions regarding the mission and vision were noted and taken into consideration.
- 4.2 The Indonesian embassy wanted to include programs run by the United Nations at the international level. Since this involved other agencies, the Chairman suggested this matter to be resolved later.

(Action: Chairman)

5.0 DISCUSSION ON PROPOSED AREAS OF COOPERATION

- 5.1 Below is the suggestions discussed in the meeting regarding the areas of cooperation:
 - 5.1.1 To focus the programmes on other new areas of teacher education.
 - 5.1.2 To enhance the technical and major areas of study in the student's exchange programme.
 - 5.1.3 To collaborate in technical and pedagogical areas of teaching and learning.
- 5.2 A member suggested to have a faculty exchange programs, for example, a programme that completed in 4 years, 2 years in one university and the other 2 years in another. An example of this programme has been conducted in Singapore.
- 5.3 The meeting also discussed on assessment instruments. Dr. Irene Jansen from DAAD mentioned, assessment instruments for testing and scholarships for students to pursue courses are available in her university. For example, IGSP.
- 5.6 Regarding programmes that can be conducted by CAPEU, members suggested the establishment of twinning programmes or having double masters programs. CAPEU can get the programmes from members and sister countries to work together.
- 5.7 The meetings were informed that there is an urgent need to get 53, 000 children, a basic education in Sabah who have been left behind. The main goal is to increase the literacy level among these children. Suggestions to overcome the problems were suggested. One of which is by having a trainee teachers or undergraduates that can reach these children.
- In conclusion of the discussions, the following proposals would be looked upon; 5.8
 - 5.8.1 Student Exchange Programs
 - 5.8.2 **Faculty Exchanges**
 - 5.8.3 **Dual/Double Degree Programs**
 - 5.8.4 Joint research and publication
 - 5.8.5 Joint Community Development and Services
 - 5.8.6 Disaster Related Services
 - 5.8.7 Cross-Border Programs
 - 5.8.8 **Professional Teacher Training Programs**
 - 5.8.9 Home Stay Programs
 - 5.8.10 In-State Tuition
 - 5.8.11 Regular Conference
 - 5.8.12 Automatic Credit transfer
 - 5.8.13 Reduction of Accommodation Cost
 - 5.8.14 Degree Accreditation
 - 5.8.15 Sabbatical Leave Program

6.0 RESEARCH AND PUBLICATION

- 6.1 The meeting agreed that the consortium should publish 2 journals per year in future time.
- 6.2 The meeting also agreed more research should be conducted in the field of Humanities in Doctorate levels.

(Information and unanimously agreed)

7.0 ANNUAL FEES

7.1 A fee of USD 3,000.00 for 2 years was suggested by the treasurer and the amount has to be banked in immediately.

8.0 PROPOSED ACTIVITIES

8.1 The proposed activity was disscussed as follow:

Inaugural activity in the International Conference in Special Education (ICSE) in September, 2013, at Syiah Kuala University, Banda Aceh, Indonesia. Members were invited to submit papers for the conference.

9.0 SECOND DIRECTORS BOARD MEETING

9.1 Proposal for the second meeting was to be held in Syiah Kuala University, Banda Aceh a day before the ICSE, 2013, i.e. on 4th September, 2013.

Proposal for the next Board of Director's Meeting;

- a) Third Board of Directors Meeting April 2014 Brunei,
- b) Fourth Board of Directors Meeting July 2014, Bali,
- c) Fifth Board of Directors Meeting November 2014, Australia,
- d) Sixth Board of Directors Meeting April 2015, Jogjakarta.

10.0 OTHER MATTERS

- 10.1 The meeting discussed on programmes that could be developed or collaborated with other universities.
- Members suggested the need to look into other universities joining the consortium. In answering the proposal, Dr. Qismullah Yusuff said that Taiwan was interested in joining the consortium but it is governed by China's policy. Philippines has agreed to join in the next meeting, Japan has shown interest while Papua New Guinea is considering the proposal.

11.0 Adjournment of meeting

The meeting was adjourned at 12.20 pm. The Chairman thanked all members for their cooperation and the fruitful discussion. The second CAPEU meeting is to be held in Aceh, Indonesia in 2013.



CONSORTIUM OF ASIA-PACIFIC EDUCATION UNIVERSITIES (CAPEU)

FINANCIAL REPORTS

CAPEU PROGRAM MAPPING

| | INTERNATIONAL ISLAMIC UNIVERSITY (IIU) | | | | | | | |
|--------------------------|--|----------------------|----------------------|------------|---|----------|--|--|
| INSTITUTION & PROGRAMS | CREDIT TRANSFER | SABBATICAL LEAVES | EXCHANGE STUDENTS | RECIPROCAL | JOINT RESEARCH | TRAINING | | |
| UPSI | | | | | | | | |
| DEAKIN | | | | | | | | |
| UPI | | | TO LAND | | | | | |
| SYIAH KUALA | | | | | | | | |
| AR-RANIRY | | | | A STORY | | | | |
| MEDAN STATE UNI | | | | | | | | |
| KUPU | | | | | - N - N - N - N - N - N - N - N - N - N | | | |
| UUM | | | | | | | | |
| IIU | | | | | | | | |
| PHILIPPINE NORMAL UNI | | | | | 34 | | | |
| DAAD | | | | | | | | |

| | KOLEJ UNIVERSITI PERGURUAN UGAMA | | | | | | | | |
|--------------------------|----------------------------------|----------------------|----------------------|------------|-------------------|----------|--|--|--|
| INSTITUTION & PROGRAMS | CREDIT TRANSFER | SABBATICAL LEAVES | EXCHANGE STUDENTS | RECIPROCAL | JOINT RESEARCH | TRAINING | | | |
| UPSI | | | <u> </u> | | | | | | |
| DEAKIN | | | | | | | | | |
| UPI | | | | | | | | | |
| SYIAH KUALA | | | | | | | | | |
| AR-RANIRY | | | | | | | | | |
| MEDAN STATE UNI | | | | | | | | | |
| KUPU | | | | | | | | | |
| UUM | | | | | | | | | |
| IIU | | | | | | | | | |
| PHILIPPINE NORMAL UNI | | | | | | | | | |
| DAAD | | | | | | | | | |

| | PHILLIPPINE NORMAL UNIVERSITY | | | | | | | | |
|---------------------------|-------------------------------|----------------------|----------------------|------------|-------------------|----------|--|--|--|
| INSTITUTION & PROGRAMS | CREDIT TRANSFER | SABBATICAL LEAVES | EXCHANGE STUDENTS | RECIPROCAL | JOINT RESEARCH | TRAINING | | | |
| UPSI | | | | | | | | | |
| DEAKIN | | | | | | | | | |
| UPI | | | | | | | | | |
| SYIAH KUALA | | | | | | | | | |
| AR-RANIRY | | | | | | | | | |
| MEDAN STATE UNI | | | | | | | | | |
| KUPU | | | | | | | | | |
| UUM | | | | | | | | | |
| IIU | | | | | | | | | |
| PNU | | | | | | 11-11-11 | | | |
| DAAD | | | | | | | | | |

| | SYIAH KUALA UNIVERSITY, ACEH | | | | | | | | |
|---------------------------|------------------------------|----------------------|----------------------|------------|-------------------|----------|--|--|--|
| INSTITUTION & PROGRAMS | CREDIT TRANSFER | SABBATICAL LEAVES | EXCHANGE STUDENTS | RECIPROCAL | JOINT RESEARCH | TRAINING | | | |
| UPSI | | | | | | | | | |
| DEAKIN | | | | | | | | | |
| UPI | | | | | | | | | |
| SYIAH KUALA | | | | | | 1 | | | |
| AR-RANIRY | | | | | | | | | |
| MEDAN STATE UNI | | | | | | | | | |
| KUPU | | | | | | | | | |
| UUM | | | | | | | | | |
| IIU | | | | | | | | | |
| PNU | | | | | | | | | |
| DAAD | | | | | | | | | |

| | UNIVERSITI UTARA MALAYSIA | | | | | | | | |
|---------------------------|---------------------------|----------------------|----------------------|------------|-------------------|----------|--|--|--|
| INSTITUTION & PROGRAMS | CREDIT TRANSFER | SABBATICAL LEAVES | EXCHANGE STUDENTS | RECIPROCAL | JOINT RESEARCH | TRAINING | | | |
| UPSI | | | | | | | | | |
| DEAKIN | | | | | | | | | |
| UPI | | | | | | | | | |
| SYIAH KUALA | | | | | | | | | |
| AR-RANIRY | | | 11 - 14 - 11 | | | | | | |
| MEDAN STATE UNI | | | | | | | | | |
| KUPU | | | | | | | | | |
| UUM | | | | | | | | | |
| IIU | | | | | | | | | |
| PNU | | | | | | | | | |
| DAAD | | | | J | | | | | |

| INSTITUTION & PROGRAMS | UNIVERSITAS PENDIDIKAN INDONESIA (UPI) | | | | | | | | | |
|---------------------------|--|----------------------|----------------------|--|-------------------|----------|--|--|--|--|
| | CREDIT TRANSFER | SABBATICAL LEAVES | EXCHANGE STUDENTS | | JOINT RESEARCH | TRAINING | | | | |
| UPSI | | | | | | | | | | |
| DEAKIN | | | | | | | | | | |
| UPI | | | | | | | | | | |
| SYIAH KUALA | | | | | | | | | | |
| AR-RANIRY | | | | | | | | | | |
| MEDAN STATE UNI | | | | | | | | | | |
| KUPU | | | | | | | | | | |
| UUM | | | | | | | | | | |
| IIU | | | | | | | | | | |
| PNU | | | 74 - 1 | | | | | | | |
| DAAD | | | | | | | | | | |

| INSTITUTION & PROGRAMS | UNIVERSITAS NEGERI MEDAN (UNM) | | | | | | | | | |
|---------------------------|--------------------------------|----------------------|----------------------|------------|-------------------|----------|--|--|--|--|
| | CREDIT TRANSFER | SABBATICAL LEAVES | EXCHANGE STUDENTS | RECIPROCAL | JOINT RESEARCH | TRAINING | | | | |
| UPSI | | | | | | | | | | |
| DEAKIN | | | | | | | | | | |
| UPI | | | | | | | | | | |
| SYIAH KUALA | | | | | | | | | | |
| AR-RANIRY | | | | | | | | | | |
| MNU (MEDAN) | | | | | | | | | | |
| KUPU | | | | | | | | | | |
| UUM | | | | | | | | | | |
| IIU | | | | | | | | | | |
| PNU | | | | | | | | | | |
| DAAD | | | | | | | | | | |

| INSTITUTION & PROGRAMS | UNIVERSITI PENDIDIKAN SULTAN IDRIS (UPSI) | | | | | | | | | |
|---------------------------|---|----------------------|----------------------|------------|-------------------|----------|--|--|--|--|
| | CREDIT TRANSFER | SABBATICAL LEAVES | EXCHANGE STUDENTS | RECIPROCAL | JOINT RESEARCH | TRAINING | | | | |
| UPSI | | | | | | | | | | |
| DEAKIN | | | Name of Street | | | | | | | |
| UPI | | | | | | | | | | |
| SYIAH KUALA | | | | | | | | | | |
| AR-RANIRY | | | | | | | | | | |
| MNU (MEDAN) | - L- 1719 | | | | | | | | | |
| KUPU | | | | | | | | | | |
| UUM | | | | | | | | | | |
| IIU | | | | | | | | | | |
| PNU | | | | | | | | | | |
| DAAD | | | | | | | | | | |

DEAKIN UNIVERSITY MELBOURNE, AUSTRALIA

DEAKIN UNIVERSITY IS OFFERING DUAL DEGREE PROGRAMS WITH MEMBERS OF CAPEU IN THE AREAS OF:

- 1. TEACHING ENGLISH AS A FOREIGN LANGUAGE
- 2. MATHEMATICS EDUCATION
- 3. SCIENCE EDUCATION

6 MOTHS AT HOME UNIVERSITY AND 9 MONTHS AT DEAKIN UNIVERSITY

15 MONTHS PROGRAM LEADING TOWARDS MASTER'S OF EDUCATION IN:

- 1. MATHEMATICS EDUCATION
- 2. SCIENCE EDUCATION
- TEACHING ENGLISH AS A FOREIGN LANGUAGE

THE STUDENTS WILL HAVE TWO DEGREES, FROM HOME UNIVERSITY AND ALSO FROM DEAKIN UNIVERSITY. THE TOTAL COST FOR ALL CREDITS AT DEAKIN IS AUS\$ 12,000 IF THERE IS A BATCH OF 15 STUDENTS, DEAKIN IS OFFERING A NATIVE SPEAKER OF ENGLISH TO PREPARE STUDENTS AT HOME UNIVERSITY FOR A PERIOD OF 10 WEEKS.

THE HOME UNIVERSITY ONLY PREPARES ACCOMMODATION FOR THIS NATIVE SPEAKER.

DAAD (GERMAN ACADEMIC EXCHANGE SERVICES)

THERE ARE 264 UNIVERSITIES IN ALL OVER GERMANY UNDER THE COOPERATION WITH DAAD.

DAAD WILLARRANGE FOR TRAINING AND RESEARCH WITH GERMANY UNIVERSITIES FOR CAPEU MEMBERS.

CAPEU JOURNAL

The Journal of the Consortium of Asia Pacific **Education Universities**

Volume 1

April 2015

Special Issue:

"CONTEMPORARY ISSUES SPECIAL **EDUCATIONAL NEEDS"**



Editorial Board:

Special Issue Editors: Dr James Campbell, Dr Kway Eng Hock and Professor lan Robottom

Australia

Professor Ian Robottom James Campbell **Deakin University**

Indonesia:

Dr. Mujidto AK University of Surabaya

Malaysia:

Dr. Kway Eng Hock SEAMEO Regional Centre for Special Education Needs

> Dr. Qismullah Yusuf Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris

Assoc Prof Dr. Mohd Hanafi Mohd Yassin National University of Malaysia

Assoc. Prof. Dr. Loh Sau Cheong University of Malaysia

Thailand:

Assoc. Prof. Dr. Suwimon Udom-Piriyasak Suan Dusit Rajabat University

Foreword

This volume is the inaugural issue of the official *Journal of the Consortium of Asia-Pacific Education Universities (CAPEU)*. CAPEU was established in 2013 with the following vision statement:

"To envision changes and innovations in education, teacher training, research and community services among education universities in Asia and Pacific Region."

CAPEU is a non-profit consortium of education universities or universities in the Asia-Pacific region that have a strong Faculty of Education. CAPEU has around 20 member universities in Indonesia. Brunei, Malaysia, Australia, Taiwan, USA and Europe. This consortium is opened to developing partnerships with non-membereducation universities or universities with a strong faculty of education in Asia-Pacific region, as well as for-profit and nonprofit organizations for the benefits of member universities of the consortium. This consortium commenced operations in April 2013 by holding the first conference with member universities at the Indonesian Embassy in Kuala Lumpur and at the Sultan Idris Education University in Tanjung Malim, Perak, Malaysia, about 50 minutes drive to the north of Kuala Lumpur. CAPEU aims to improve the quality of education of its members in skills related to education, teacher training programs and services, community services, research and publication. The programs such as professional educational policies, curricular and managerial effectiveness, and research and outreach services will be focused in all member universities and countries of the consortium. CAPEU will also publish its own academic journal.

As the title of this journal indicates, the focus of the articles included here is on Special Educational Needs — the theme of the first international conference organized by the Consortium. Most of the articles are research-based, presenting accounts of specific projects relating to the overall theme of Special Educational Needs; in doing so these articles present new insights, perspectives and knowledge on this topic. Overall the issue makes a significant contribution to research in the region.

Research may be defined in terms of two elements or 'moments': the first moment is the generation of new knowledge; the second moment is scholarship --making this new knowledge public. By publishing these research articles in this journal, the second 'scholarship moment' of making this new knowledge public is achieved. This is an important step as publishing research enables others to benefit from it as well.

However the value of scholarship is not confined to its publication here in this journal – rather, this is just the beginning. Putting our thinking 'out there' is not only a means of sharing evidence-based ideas among a broader community of interest, it is also a vital step in enhancing the rigor of research work. Scholarship (publishing research results) exposes those results to critical appraisal and critique within a broader community of inquirers, and this broader critical engagement has the capacity to strengthen the impact and rigor of the research work. Scholarship (publishing work in journals like this one) is an important component of enhancing the quality of the 'new knowledge' being 'made public'.

Scholarship in this journal has another valuable outcome. It contributes to the visibility and positioning of the Consortium of Asia-Pacific Education Universities as the organization sponsoring the Journal. The scholarship is evidence of the significant research being undertaken within member institutions of CAPEU and provides a basis in evidence to support the decision-making, operations and reputation of the organization.

The emergence of this scholarship in Special Educational Needs indicates the continuing development of CAPEU as an important organization of academic institutions in the region. I congratulate the organisers of the conference and the Board of Management of CAPEU for conducting the range of academic activities of which this Journal is but one.

Professor Ian Robottom Deakin University April 2015





A PICTOR AND THE PROPERTY OF T

CONSORTIUM OF ASIA-PACIFIC EDUCATION UNIVERSITIES (CAPEU)

kin Conversity | Curtin Linconsity Porth | Symma Embelling Ar-Raniry State University | Musicina and University | Indonesia Education | Medan State University | Indonesia Education | Surabaya State University | Topical State University | Surabaya State University | University | Surabaya State University | University | Surabaya State University | Education | Falangkaraya State University | Itambung Mangkurat | Itambung Man

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Deakin University Melbourne May 2015





CONSORTIUM OF ASIA-PACIFIC EDUCATION UNIVERSITIES (CAPEU)

Contents

- 2 From the President
- 3 From the Secretary
- 6 Board of Directors (April 2013 April 2015)
- 7 Members of CAPEU
- 9 Activities of CAPEU April 2013- April 2015
- **13** Membership Fees
- 14 Roundtable Meeting, May 11, 2015
 - Presentation of Quality of Teacher Training among Members of CAPEU
 - Education for the unreachable Children-Education
- 15 Annual General Meeting, May 12, 2015
 - **16** Approval of the First BoD Meeting (April 22, 2013)
 - 19 Financial Reports
 - Meeting Dissolved & Election of New BoD CAPEU 2015-2017
 - Speech by the New Presdient CAPEU 2015-2017

FROM THE PRESIDENT



Professor Dato' Dr. Zakaria Kasa President, CAPEU & Vice Chancellor of Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris

On behalf ot the Consortium of Asia-Pacific Education Universities (CAPEU), it gives me a great pleasure to welcome all of you to the CAPEU Roundtable and 2nd Annual General Meeting. CAPEU attracts over 20 leaders from across the Asia Pacific, Europe and United States of America.

For the last two years, CAPEU has provided a platform for open dialogue among members, broaden knowledge, enhance mutual understanding, discuss issues and strategies and significant education developments. It is our hope that the ensuing discussion will contribute to a better appreciation of the different viewpoints, as well as produce important recommendations for the benefit of leaders and policy-makers in the Asia Pacific regions.

We wish to express our sincere gratitude to the distinguished role players for their knowledge, expertise and time, in various ways, be it in delivering keynote speeches, moderating sessions or in discussing issues as panel members. Last but not least, we wish to convey our sincere appreciation to all contributors for their continued support and active participation. As always, we can expect them to make a very positive contribution towards enhancing the richness of the discussion at the various CAPEU activities.

FROM THE SECRETARY



Prof. Dato' Dr. Noraini Idris Secretary of BoD of CAPEU and Deputy Vice Chancellor (Research and Innovation). Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris

The dawn of the 21st century has ushered in a new era of invention, innovation and development. The aura pervades across various realms of knowledge and skills. It also envelops the field of education which is constantly expanding its horizons. As an institution of higher learning, the main mission is to accelerate excellence in education. CAPEU has shown involvement in a variety of education activities. This involvement could not have yielded results without the hard work of the members.

We are glad to inform the members of this consortium that we have designed and developed quite many activities that benefit members and its countries. We do hope that we will be able to do more for the years to come. In addition to founding members, we have members registered, from Malaysia, the Philippines, Indonesia, Thailand, Australia, and from USA. More universities in Indonesian have informed joining the consortium soon.

Exchange programs in the form of reciprocal seem to be preferable by members of the consortium. Mapping programs workshop was conducted between members of the consortium to formally exchange programs reciprocally between members.

ASEAN partnership has been a key agenda for all leaders of ASEAN. CAPEU should utilize many of the opportunities provided by the leaders of ASEAN countries, either in academics, research, community development, education, and cross-cultural understanding among societies including Australia. ASEAN is also urging a teachers' exchange program in its multilateral relations, and CAPEU is one of the best venues for such exchanges.

BOARD OF DIRECTOR CAPEU 2013-2015

PRESIDENT CAPEU

Prof. Dr. Dato' Zakaria Kasa Vice Chancellor, Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris (UPSI) Tanjong Malim, Perak, Malaysia

VICE PRESIDENT 1 CAPEU

Prof. Dr. Ian Morris Robottom Assoc. Dean for International Relations Deakin University, Melboune, Australia

VICE PRESIDENT 2 CAPEU

Prof. Dr. Sunaryo Kartidinata Rector, Universitas Pendidikan Indonesia (UPI)

SECRETARY 1 CAPEU

Prof. Dato' Dr. Noraini Idris Deputy Vice Chancellor for Research and Innovation, UPSI

SECRETARY 2 CAPEU

Prof Dr. Ir. Samsul Rizal Unversitas Syiah Kuala, Aceh, Indonesia

TREASURER OF CAPEU

Prof. Dr. Noor Shah Saad Faculty of Education & Human Development, UPSI

SECRETARIAT CAPEU

Asso. Prof. Dr. Qissmullah Yusof Faculty of Education & Human Development, UPSI

COMMITTEE

Prof. Dr. Rochmat Wahab Rector, Universitas Negeri Yogyakarta

Prof. Dr. H. Fasrid Wajidi Ibrahim Rector Ar-raniry Islamic Institute, Aceh Prof. Dr. Fathur Rochman Rector, Semarang State University Semarang, Indonesai

Prof. Dr H. Arismunandar Rector, Makassar State University Makassar, Indonesia

Prof. Dr. Muchlas Samani Rector, Surabaya State University Surabaya, Indonesia

Prof. Dr. Phil Yanuar Kiram Rector, Universitas Negeri Padang Padang

Prof. Dr. Syawal Gultom Rector, Medan State University Medan, Indonesia

Dr. Hjh. Masnon Hj. Ibrahim Rais, Seri Begawan Religious Teachers's University, Brunei (KUPU)

Prof. Dr. Ester B. Ogena President, Phillippine Normal University Manila, Phillippine

Prof. Dato' Seri Dr. Muhammad Mustafa Isahak Vice Chansellor, Universiti Utara Malaysia, Malaysia

Prof. Dato' Dr. Zaleha Kamaruddin Rector, International Islamic University, Malaysia

Prof. Dr. Abdul Wahab Rector, Fatoni University, Yala, Thailand

Dr. Guiod Scheniders German Academic Exchange Services Kuala Lumpur

MEMBERS OF CAPEU

MEMBER

Fatony University Yala. Thailand

Burapha University Chiang Mai, Thailand

Philippines Normal University Manila, Philippines

College University Teacher Training Bandar Seri Begawan, Brunei Darussalam

Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris Tanjong Malim, Perak, Malaysia

University Utara Malaysia Sintok, Kedah, Malaysia

International Islamic University Malaysia Gombak, Selangor, Malaysia

Deakin University. Melbourne, Australia

Curtin University Perth, Australia

Syiah Kuala University Banda Aceh, Indonesia

Ar-Raniry State University Banda Aceh, Indonesia

Malikussaleh University Lhokseumawe, Aceh, Indonesia

Medan State University Medan, Indonesia

Padang State University Padang, Indonesia

Sriwijava University Palembang, Indonesia

Indonesia Education University Bandung Indonesia

Semarang State University Semarang, Indonesia

Yogjakarta State University Yogjakarta, Indonesia

Surabaya State University Surabava, Indonesia

Bali (Ganesha) State University Bali. Indonesia

Makassar State University Makassar, Indonesia

Universitas Islam Kalimantan Banjarmasin, Indonesia

OBSERVER

Gorontalo State University Gorontalo, Indonesia

Papua State University Manokwari Indonesia

Raja Ali Haji Maritime University Pangkal Pinang, Riau, Indonesia

Jakarta State University Jakarta Indonesia

Lambung Mangkurat University Banjarmasin, Indonesia

Antasari State University Banjarmasin, Indonesia

Muhammadiyah University Palangkaraya, Indonesia

Palangkaraya State University Palangkaraya, Indonesia

PARTNER

Deakin University Melbourne Australia

German Academic Exchange Services Bonn Germany

Miyagi University of Education Miyagi, Japan

East-West Center Honolulu, Hawaii, United States of America



CONSORTIUM OF ASIA-PACIFIC EDUCATION UNIVERSITIES (CAPEU)

YEAR IN REVIEW 2013-2015

ACTIVITIES

April 2013 - April 2015

1... The 16 program of CAPEU was launched (April 23, 2013).

Before the eyes of all key management of all members of CAPEU, the 16 programs of CAPEU were launched and officiated by Prof. Dr. Siraj to commemorate the opening of the consortium. This was a historical moments for all rectors/presidents of CAPEU members.

The followings were the programs that had beenimplemented between all members of CAPEU since April 2013 - April 2015.

1.1 Students' Exchanges

i) Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris (UPSI) Malaysia and Syiah Kuala University, Aceh, Indonesia.

> Students' exchanges programs that have been taken placed between Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris (UPSI) - Syiah Kuala University (SKU) in Banda Aceh.

Exchange Program between Lab Schools of CAPEU (1-12 April 2014)

This was a two-week Students' Exchnage Program between FPPM School partners and Syiah Kuała University lab schools or schools that have special academic and research ties in academic and research with the Faculty of Education and Teacher Training and Syiah Kuala University. The schools that were involved from Aceh were:

- SMA Lab School of Syiah Kuala a. University
- b. SMA Fajar Harapan
- c. Fatih Bilingual School (Boys)
- d. Fatih Bilingual School (Girls)
- SMA Modal Bangsa

As many as 36 students of Kuala Kubu Baharu participated in the reciprocal program. They spent the time not only at the dorms of the schools but also immerged with the students of the above schools by being students of the above schools for 8 school days. It is expected that similar program will be made by Aceh schools with the Mara Kuala Kubu Baharu school.

ii) **Training on Disaster Management**

A week training on Emergency Evacuation for teachers' candidates teaching at Malaysian coastal lines were provided by the Faculty of Mathematics and Sciences and the Disaster Management Center of Syiah Kuala University & the Banda Aceh National SAR's Office. Training fees. accommodation and meals were arranged by Syiah Kuala University as a part of Reciprocal program. As many as 32 students from UPSI participated in this program. The program was officially opened by the Deputy Rector for Relations Affairs of Sviah Kuala University and closed by the Dean of the Faculty of Mathematics and Sciences who was also the director of the Center for Research and Studies on Risk Reduction Management of Sviah Kuala University. The cost for training was provided by Syiah Kuala University and also by the Banda Aceh SAR's Office.

1.2 **Faculty Exchanges**

Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris (UPSI), Malaysia and Syiah Kuala University (SKU), Aceh

a) Prof. Dato' Dr. Tengku Mohani binti Tengku Mokhtar from the Faculty of Languages and Communication of UPSI has been appoited as Adjunct Professor at Syiah Kuala University, Aceh. Asso. Prof. Dr. Qissmulah Yusof is an exchange teaching staff member between SKU and UPSI untill February 3, 2017.

1.3 Regular Conference

The member university may request the management of the consortium to hold seminar, workshop and other form of academic meeting, at least once a year, and call for papers from faculty and students of members of consortium. The consortium should waive or reduce fees for any faculty or students from members of the consortium to participate in the seminars. It can be held in campus or outside of campus, depending on the facilities available in each member university and the budget.

i. First conference on Special Education (4-6 September, 2013)

This conference was hosted by Syiah Kuala University, Aceh and Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris and sponsored by The Government of Aceh. The theme of the conference was "Diversity in Special Education Issues and Challenges in the First Quarter of the Millennium" was held at Syiah Kuala University in Banda Aceh, Indonesia.

Prof. Dr. Fingerlee from Germany to be a keynote speaker from the conference and Deakin University sent Prof. Dr. Kidman to be key note speaker for the same conference. UPSI sent Prof. Dr. Zakaria Kasa, the Vice Chancellor of UPSI to be keynote speaker for the conference at Syiah Kuala University in Banda Aceh.

ii) The Second Conference on Teacher Education (24-25 November, 2014)

The conference was hosted by Kolej Universiti Perguruan Ugama (KUPU), Brunei and sponsored by the Ministry of Religious Affairs of Brunei Darussalam and the Ministry of Education of Brunei Darussalam. It was officially opened by the Ministry of Religious Affairs and officially closed by the Ministry of Education of Brunei Darussalam. The theme of the conference was "Teacher Education in Islamic Perspectives" was held at Indera Samudera Hall, Empire Hotel & Country Club, Brunei Darussalam.

The conference was participated by almost 500 participants from countries in South EastAsian nations in addition to participants from CAPEU Members. A resolution was made by the Conference Committee and presented it the two ministers in Brunei Darussalam.

1.4 Graduate Students Research Symposium

Deakin University, Melbourne, Australia and Sultan Idris Education University

- i. The first Graduate Students Research Symposium between Deakin University and Sultan Idris Education University was conducted form April 3-6, 2014 at Deakin University. 22 Graduate students from UPSI and 13 students from Deakin University presented their research proposal and research finding. It was conducted at Geelong Campus in Melbourne, Australia.
- ii. The Second Graduate Students Research Symposium UPSI-Deakin Symposium was conducted at UPSI from Oct. 29 Nov. 2, 2014. The venue for the symposium was the University Grand Theatre at the Proton City Campus. There were 14 papers presented from Deakin University and 28 papers from UPSI. It was participated by about 300 graduate students from UPSI and about 100 teachers of schools in the state of Perak where UPSI is located.

The participants of the symposium demanded that similar symposium be made regularly and reciprocally between the two universities, here at UPSI or at Deakin University. The demands were not only from the teachers around the campus but also from the graduate students of UPSI and the lecturers from the two universities. Many of students who presented their papers at the symposium had shown their leaderships in managing the audiences and in maturing their presentation experiences at the symposium.

Sabbatical Leave Program 1.5

- ï. Assoc. Prof. Dr. Jane Teng Yan Fang, a faculty member of the Faculty of Economics and Management of Sultan Idris Education University had returned from East-West Center in Hawaii and now resume her teaching at her faculty.
- ii. Assos. Prof. Goh Swee Che just returned from Deakin University after spending almost 9 months sabbatical leave at the university.
- iii. Assoc. Prof. Dr. Siti Eishah Moekhsien is now at Deakin University conducting her sabbatical leave for the same period as Dr. Goh.
- İ۷. Dr. Ikhsan from FPPM is now at Syiah Kuala University conducting his Sabbatical Leave at the university. He will be there for a period of 6 months.

1.6 **Professional Teacher Training Program**

Professional Development for School Administrators, Mathematics & Science Teachers

į, The members of the consortium can also develop joint training programs to train teachers, principals, school administrators, and other professions related to education at any member of the consortium in which trainers are selected from professional staff from members of the consortium. Through MoU signed between Government of Aceh and Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris for instances, two batches of math and science teachers and principals of modeling schools from Aceh have been trained by UPSI (with venues in Aceh and Malaysia) without taking any profits. The trainings were conducted on the basis of "CSR-corporate social responsibilities" of the Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris.

ii. Mapping Program Workshop (Appendix 2)

In order that all members of CAPEU have programs to be developed and executed bilaterally or multilaterally **CAPEU** conducted mapping program workshop between members. It was participated by 10 members of CAPEU and each member sent two participants to participate in the workshop. It was hold at UPSI in Tanjong Malim, Malaysia on Oct. 30-Nov. 1, 2014.

iii. Thinking **Based** Learning (TBL) Workshop

As agreed in the Mapping program at UPSI, Thinking Based Learning (TBL) workshop was conducted from October 6-12, 2014. Deakin University as a partner, sent Prof. Dr. James Campbell, an expert in TBL, to be a key trainer for the training. The training was also assisted by local trainers: Assoc. Prof. Dr. Maria binti Salih, Assoc. Prof. Dr. Siti Eishah Mokhsien, Assoc. Prof. Dr. Qismullah Yusuf, Dr. Muhammad Yusuf and Dr. Muhammad Mai.

1.7 Joint Research and Publications

In addition to establishing collaborations between CAPEU members the consortium developed cooperation with member universities in conducting joint research funded bilaterally or trilaterally between the core members and also with other party interested in the projects. To enable the consortium in managing the joint research and publications there should be a committee established by the consortium and appoint a country/ university/ institution to manage all researches and publications written by faculties from members of the consortium, partner universities and from writers outside of the consortium. The first Journal between members of the consortium will be launched and. Deakin University, as the partner of the consortium will jointly published the journal and is the editor for the journal. Name of the CAPEU journal The Journal of the Consortium of Asia Pacific Education Universities and special issues on "Contemporary Issues in Special Educational Needs", Volume 1, April 2015 (Appendix 3)

1.8 Board of Director Meeting

i. The 2nd Board of Directors' Meeting of CAPEU (September 2013)

The Second Board of Directors' Meeting held at Syiah Kuala University. The venue was at the Senate Meeting Room at Rectorate Office of Syiah Kuala University. It was participated by 12 members of CAPEU.

ii. The 3rd Board of Directors' Meeting at Bandung (June 24, 2014)

The 3th BoD Meeting was held at the Indonesia Education University in Bandung, Indonesia, on the second day after the UPI-UPSI Conference at the UPI Senate Meeting Room. It was hosted by UPI and led by Vice Chancellor of UPSI as the President of CAPEU, assisted by the Rector of UPI bandung, by the Secretary of CAPEU, Deputy Rector for Academic Affairs and Deputy Rector for Relations Affairs of Universitas Pendidikan Indonesia in Bandung, Indonesia.

iii. The 4th BoD Meeting at KUPU (November 24, 2014)

The fourth BoD Meeting of CAPEU was conducted on November 24, 2014 at the KUPU (Kolej University Perguruan Ugama), Brunei Darussalam. It was held at the University Senate Room of KUPU. It was participated by 11 members of the consortium, chaired by the President of CAPEU, the Secretary of CAPEU and the host of the BoD Meeting, Dr. Hajjah Masnon bin Hj. Ibrahim, the Rector of KUPU.

MEMBERSHIP FEES CONSORTIUM OF ASIA PACIFIC EDUCATION UNIVERSITIES (CAPEU)

APRIL 17, 2013 - APRIL 30, 2015

| No. | Date | REMARKS ON THE PAYMENT | AMOUNT (RM) | INSTITUTION | EXPIRED DATE |
|-----|------------|------------------------------|----------------|--|-----------------|
| 1.; | 17/04/2013 | JL130400466 | 10,000.00 | UNIVERSITI PENDIDIKAN SULTAN IDRIS | 16/04/2015 |
| 2. | 14/06/2013 | JL130600318 | 9.004.50 | DEAKIN UNIVERSITY, MELBOURNE, AUSTRALIA | 13/06/2015 |
| 3. | 30/08/2013 | JL130800548 | 9,861.00 | UNIVERSITAS NEGERI SEMARANG, INDONESIA | 29/08/2015 |
| 4. | 31/12/2013 | JL31201580 | 9,811.50 | UNIVERSITAS NEGERI YOGJAKARTA, INDONESIA | 30/12/2015 |
| 5. | 31/12/2013 | JL31201497 | 9,793.50 | UNIVERSITAS SYIAH KUALA, ACEH, INDONESIA | 30/12/2015 |
| 6. | 31/12/2013 | JL31201497 | 9,703.50 | UNIVERSITAS NEGERI SURABAYA, INDONESIA | 30/12/2015 |
| 7,. | 31/12/2013 | JL31201497 | 9,578.47 | KOLEJ UNIVERSITI PERGURUAN UGAMA, BRUNEI | 30/12/2015 |
| 8. | 31/12/2013 | JL31201498 | 9,483.00 | UNIVERSITAS PENDIDIKAN INDONESIA, INDONESIA | 30/12/2015 |
| 9. | 28/01/2014 | JL140100633 | 9,910.50 | UNIVERSITAS NEGERI MAKASSAR, INDONESIA | 27/01/2016 |
| 10. | 04/04/2014 | JL140400114 | 9,555.30 | INTERNATIONAL ISLAMIC UNIVERSITY MALAYSIA | 03/04/2016 |
| 11. | 28/05/2014 | JL140500808 | 9,864.00 | UNIVERSITI UTARA MALAYSIA, MALAYSIA | 27/05/2016 |
| 12, | 27/11/2014 | RT41100238 | 9,000.00 | FATONI ISLAMIC UNIVERSITY, YALA, THAILAND | 26/10/2016 |
| 13. | 28/11/2014 | JI141100720 | 9,894.00 | MEDAN STATE UNIVERSITY, MEDAN, INDONESIA | 27/11/2016 |
| 14. | 19/12/2014 | JL141200529 | 10,257.71 | PHILIPPINE NORMAL UNIVERSITY, MANILA, PHILIPPINE | 18/12/2016 |
| | T | OTAL | 135,716.98 | | |



CONSORTIUM OF ASIA-PACIFIC EDUCATION UNIVERSITIES (CAPEU)

ROUNDTABLE MEETING

Time: 9.00 am | Date: May 11, 2015

9.00 am

Welcoming Speech by the Vice Chancellor of Deakin University, Host of the 5th BoD Meeting of CAPEU

Welcoming Speech by the President of CAPEU
Vice Chancellor of UPSI

9.30 am

Quality of Teacher Training among Members of CAPEU (Presentation)

- 1. Prof. Dr. Sunaryo Kartasasmita Indonesia
- 2. Prof. Dr. Ian Robottom Australia
- 3. Prof. Dato Dr. Noraini Idris Malaysia

Lunch

2.00 pm

Education for the Unreachable Children-Education Attache Indonesia Embassy KL



CONSORTIUM OF ASIA-PACIFIC EDUCATION UNIVERSITIES (CAPEU)

Committed to changes in Teacher Training and Education, Research & **Community Development**

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

- 1.0 Welcoming Speech by the Chancellor of Deakin University Host University of the CAPEU
- 2.0 Welcoming Speech by the President of CAPEU Vice Chancellor of UPSI
- 3.0 Approval of the First BoD Meeting (April 22, 2013- Appendix 1)
- 4.0 **Financial Reports**
- 5.0 **Meeting Dissolved**
- 6.0 Election of New Board of Directors CAPEU
 - President
 - Vice president 1
 - Vice president 2
 - Secretary 1
 - Secretary 2
 - Treasurer
 - Secretariat
 - Committee
- 7.0 Speech by the New President of CAPEU (2015-2017)



MINUTES OF THE 1ST BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING OF CONSORTIUM OF ASIA-PACIFIC EDUCATION **UNIVERSITIES** (CAPEU)

Date

22 April 2013

Day

Monday

Time

10.45 am

Venue

Intercontinental Hotel, Kuala Lumpur

(Embassy of Indonesia)

ATTENDANCE

Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris Prof. Dato' Dr. Zakaria Kasa 1 Prof. Dato' Dr. Noraini Idris 2 Dato' Paduka Dr. Junaidi Abu Bakar 3 Assoc. Prof. Dr. Noor Shah Saad

- Assoc. Prof. Dr. Qismullah Yusuf
- Dr. Rosnidar binti Mansor 6
- Dr. Kannamah Mottan 7
- 8 Prof. Madya Dr. Siti Eshah Mokshein
- Dr. Uzi bin Dollah 9

Universitas Syiah Kuala Banda Aceh Prof. Dr. Ir. Samsul Rizal 10

- Wildan Bin Abdullah 11
- Dr. Jufri, M.Pd 12
- Dr.Muklis, M.Ed 13
- Dr. Bahrun, M.Pd 14
- Prof. Dr. H. Farid Wajdi Ibrahim, MA 15
- Prof. Dr. Syahrizal Abbas, MA., 16
- Dr. H. Muhibbuthabry, M.Ag., 17

Ar-Raniry Islamic Institute

| 18 | Dr. Muhammad Nasir, M. Hum. | |
|----|--------------------------------------|---|
| 19 | Saifullah, S. Pd. I. MA | |
| 20 | Dr. Apridar , SE, M.Si | Universitas Malikulsaleh Lhokseumawe |
| 21 | Iskandar Zulkarnaen | |
| 22 | Muhammad Haikal | |
| 23 | Rita Meutia, M.Si | |
| 24 | Prof. Dr. Sunaryo Kartaninata, M.Pd | Universitas Pendidikan Indonesia, Bandung |
| 25 | Prof. Furqon, MA, Ph.D | |
| 26 | Sri Harto | |
| 27 | Prof. Dr. Ibnu Hajar | Universitas Negeri Medan |
| 28 | Dr. Khairil Ansari, M.Pd | |
| 29 | Prof. Dr. H. Eko. Hadi Sujiono, M.Si | Universitas Negeri Makassar |
| 30 | Abdullah Pandang Ali | |
| 31 | Prof. Dr. Muchlas Samani | Universitas Negeri Surabaya |
| 32 | Prof. Dr. Nurhasanm M. Kes | |
| 33 | Prof. Dr. Badia Perizade, M. B. A | Universitas Sriwijaya Palembang |
| 34 | Ahmad Muslim, Ph.D. | |
| 35 | Soefendi Ph.D | |
| 36 | Assoc. Prof. Dr. Montree Yamkasikorn | Burapha University, Chonburi |
| 37 | Mr. Abdurrahman bin Weayusoh | Yala Islamic University |
| 38 | Prof. Dr. David Wood | Curtin University Perth |
| 39 | Prof. Dr. Walter Ong | |
| 40 | Dr. Irene Jansen | DAAD-Jakarta |
| 41 | Prof. Dr. Ian Morris Robottom | DEAKIN University Melbourne |
| 42 | Oleksandr Kostogryz | |
| 43 | Dr. Terance W. Bigalke | East-West Center Hawaii |
| 44 | Dr. Hajjah Masnon binti Haji Ibrahim | Universiti Perguruan Ugama Seri Begawan |
| 45 | Prof. Dr. Phil Yanuar Kiram | Universitas Padang |
| 46 | Dr. Alizamar, M. Pd | |
| 47 | Dr. Syahrial Bakhtiar, M. Pd | |
| 48 | Dr. Ardipal, M. Pd | |
| 49 | Prof. Dr. I Nyoman Sudiana, M. Pd | Universitas Pendidikan Ganesha |
| 50 | Dr. I Wayan Muderawan, M. S., Ph.D | |
| 51 | Prof. Dr. Rusdi Thaib | Indonesian Embassy Kuala Lumpur |
| 52 | Pn. Zubaidah | Brunei Darussalam Embassy |
| 53 | Prof. Dr. Rochmat Wahab | Universitas Negeri Yogyakarta |
| 54 | Prof. Dr. Fathur Rokhman, M. Hum | Universitas Negeri Semarang |
| | | |

CHAIRMAN'S OPENING REMARKS

The meeting started with the recitation of Surah Al-Fatihah. The chairperson/chairman welcomed all members to the meeting and thanked those who were coming.

The Chairman then get acquainted with all the members of the meeting.

2.0 CAPEU's LOGO

- Below was the the suggestion discussed in the meeting: 2.1
 - Change CAPEU to APCEU
 - Change the map to be of the Asia Pacific Region only.
 - Change the color of the logo
 - Insert dots i the acronym of the consortium

(Unanimously agreed and to be discussed further by the secretariat)

THE APPOINTMENT OF EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS 3.0

- The meeting agreed the Chairmans's position/post to be held by the VC of UPSI for two 3.1 years commencing April 2013.
- The following was the nominations for the position in the executive board: 3.2

CAPEU Board of Directors

President

Prof. Dato' Dr. Zakaria Kasa (UPSI)

Vice President Prof. Dr. Ian Morris Robottom (Deakin University)

Prof. Dr. Sunaryo Kartadinata (UPI)

Secretary

Prof. Dato' Dr. Noraini Idris (UPSI)

Prof. Dr. Ir. Samsul Rizal (Universitas Syiah Kuala)

Treasurer

Assoc. Prof. Dr. Noor Shah Saad (UPSI)

Secretariat

Assoc. Prof. Dr. Qismullah Yusuf (UPSI)

Members

1. Prof. Dr. Phil. Yanuar Kiram (Universitas Negeri Padang)

- 2. Prof. Dr. H. Fasrid Wajdi Ibrahim, MA. (Ar-Raniry Islamic Institute, Aceh)
- 3. Prof. Dr. Muchlas Samani (Universitas Negeri Surabaya)
- 4. Prof. Dr. Rochmat Wahab (Universitas Negeri Yogyakarta)
- 5. Prof. Dr. David Wood (Curtin University)
- 6. Mr. Abdurrahman Woder (Yala Islamic University)
- 7. Assoc. Prof. Dr. Winmorat Chaturanon (Burapha University)
- 8. Dato' Paduka Dr. Junaidi Abu Bakar (UPSI)
- 9. Dr. Hajah Masnon Haji Ibrahim (Universiti Perguruan Ugama Seri Begawan)

(Information and Unanimously agreed on the appointments)

4.0 DISCUSSION ON MISSION AND VISION OF THE CONSORTIUM

- 4.1 All suggestions regarding the mission and vision were noted and taken into consideration.
- 4.2 The Indonesian embassy wanted to include programs run by the United Nations at the international level. Since this involved other agencies, the Chairman suggested this matter to be resolved later.

(Action: Chairman)

5.0 DISCUSSION ON PROPOSED AREAS OF COOPERATION

- 5.1 Below is the suggestions discussed in the meeting regarding the areas of cooperation:
 - 5.1.1 To focus the programmes on other new areas of teacher education.
 - 5.1.2 To enhance the technical and major areas of study in the student's exchange programme.
 - 5.1.3 To collaborate in technical and pedagogical areas of teaching and learning.
- 5.2 A member suggested to have a faculty exchange programs, for example, a programme that completed in 4 years, 2 years in one university and the other 2 years in another. An example of this programme has been conducted in Singapore.
- 5.3 The meeting also discussed on assessment instruments. Dr. Irene Jansen from DAAD mentioned, assessment instruments for testing and scholarships for students to pursue courses are available in her university. For example, IGSP.
- 5.6 Regarding programmes that can be conducted by CAPEU, members suggested the establishment of twinning programmes or having double masters programs. CAPEU can get the programmes from members and sister countries to work together.
- 5.7 The meetings were informed that there is an urgent need to get 53, 000 children, a basic education in Sabah who have been left behind. The main goal is to increase the literacy level among these children. Suggestions to overcome the problems were suggested. One of which is by having a trainee teachers or undergraduates that can reach these children.
- In conclusion of the discussions, the following proposals would be looked upon; 5.8
 - 5.8.1 Student Exchange Programs
 - 5.8.2 **Faculty Exchanges**
 - 5.8.3 **Dual/Double Degree Programs**
 - 5.8.4 Joint research and publication
 - 5.8.5 Joint Community Development and Services
 - 5.8.6 Disaster Related Services
 - 5.8.7 Cross-Border Programs
 - 5.8.8 **Professional Teacher Training Programs**
 - 5.8.9 Home Stay Programs
 - 5.8.10 In-State Tuition
 - 5.8.11 Regular Conference
 - 5.8.12 Automatic Credit transfer
 - 5.8.13 Reduction of Accommodation Cost
 - 5.8.14 Degree Accreditation
 - 5.8.15 Sabbatical Leave Program

6.0 RESEARCH AND PUBLICATION

- 6.1 The meeting agreed that the consortium should publish 2 journals per year in future time.
- 6.2 The meeting also agreed more research should be conducted in the field of Humanities in Doctorate levels.

(Information and unanimously agreed)

7.0 ANNUAL FEES

7.1 A fee of USD 3,000.00 for 2 years was suggested by the treasurer and the amount has to be banked in immediately.

8.0 PROPOSED ACTIVITIES

8.1 The proposed activity was disscussed as follow:

Inaugural activity in the International Conference in Special Education (ICSE) in September, 2013, at Syiah Kuala University, Banda Aceh, Indonesia. Members were invited to submit papers for the conference.

9.0 SECOND DIRECTORS BOARD MEETING

9.1 Proposal for the second meeting was to be held in Syiah Kuala University, Banda Aceh a day before the ICSE, 2013, i.e. on 4th September, 2013.

Proposal for the next Board of Director's Meeting;

- a) Third Board of Directors Meeting April 2014 Brunei,
- b) Fourth Board of Directors Meeting July 2014, Bali,
- c) Fifth Board of Directors Meeting November 2014, Australia,
- d) Sixth Board of Directors Meeting April 2015, Jogjakarta.

10.0 OTHER MATTERS

- 10.1 The meeting discussed on programmes that could be developed or collaborated with other universities.
- Members suggested the need to look into other universities joining the consortium. In answering the proposal, Dr. Qismullah Yusuff said that Taiwan was interested in joining the consortium but it is governed by China's policy. Philippines has agreed to join in the next meeting, Japan has shown interest while Papua New Guinea is considering the proposal.

11.0 Adjournment of meeting

The meeting was adjourned at 12.20 pm. The Chairman thanked all members for their cooperation and the fruitful discussion. The second CAPEU meeting is to be held in Aceh, Indonesia in 2013.



CONSORTIUM OF ASIA-PACIFIC EDUCATION UNIVERSITIES (CAPEU)

FINANCIAL REPORTS

CAPEU PROGRAM MAPPING

| | | INTERNA | TIONAL ISLAN | IIC UNIVERSITY | (IIU) | |
|--------------------------|--------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------|-------------------|----------|
| INSTITUTION & PROGRAMS | CREDIT TRANSFER | SABBATICAL LEAVES | EXCHANGE STUDENTS | RECIPROCAL | JOINT RESEARCH | TRAINING |
| UPSI | | | | | | |
| DEAKIN | | | | | | |
| UPI | | | | | | |
| SYIAH KUALA | | | | | | |
| AR-RANIRY | | | | | | |
| MEDAN STATE UNI | | | | | | |
| KUPU | | | | | Fi V -2- 9 | |
| UUM | | | | | | |
| IIU | | | | | | |
| PHILIPPINE NORMAL UNI | | | | | 134 | |
| DAAD | | | | | | |

| | | KOLEJ | UNIVERSITI PI | ERGURUAN UGA | AMA | |
|--------------------------|--------------------|----------------------|----------------------|--------------|-------------------|----------|
| INSTITUTION & PROGRAMS | CREDIT TRANSFER | SABBATICAL LEAVES | EXCHANGE STUDENTS | RECIPROCAL | JOINT RESEARCH | TRAINING |
| UPSI | | | <u> </u> | | | |
| DEAKIN | | | | | | |
| UPI | | | | | | |
| SYIAH KUALA | | | | | | |
| AR-RANIRY | | | | | | |
| MEDAN STATE UNI | | | | | | |
| KUPU | | | | | | |
| UUM | | | | | | |
| IIU | | | | | | |
| PHILIPPINE NORMAL UNI | | | | | | |
| DAAD | | | | | | |

| | | PHI | LLIPPINE NO | RMAL UNIVERSI | TY | |
|---------------------------|--------------------|----------------------|----------------------|---------------|-------------------|----------|
| INSTITUTION & PROGRAMS | CREDIT TRANSFER | SABBATICAL LEAVES | EXCHANGE STUDENTS | RECIPROCAL | JOINT RESEARCH | TRAINING |
| UPSI | | | | | | |
| DEAKIN | | | | | | |
| UPI | | | | | | |
| SYIAH KUALA | | | | | | |
| AR-RANIRY | | | | | | |
| MEDAN STATE UNI | | | | | | |
| KUPU | | | | | | |
| UUM | | | | | | |
| IIU | | | | | | |
| PNU | | | | | | 1 |
| DAAD | | | | | | |

| | SYIAH KUALA UNIVERSITY, ACEH | | | | | | | |
|---------------------------|------------------------------|----------------------|----------------------|------------|-------------------|----------|--|--|
| INSTITUTION & PROGRAMS | CREDIT TRANSFER | SABBATICAL LEAVES | EXCHANGE STUDENTS | RECIPROCAL | JOINT RESEARCH | TRAINING | | |
| UPSI | | | | | | | | |
| DEAKIN | | | | | | | | |
| UPI | | | | | | | | |
| SYIAH KUALA | | | | | | 1 | | |
| AR-RANIRY | | | | | | | | |
| MEDAN STATE UNI | | | | | | | | |
| KUPU | | | | | | | | |
| UUM | | | | | | | | |
| IIU | | | | | | | | |
| PNU | | | | | | | | |
| DAAD | | | | | | | | |

| | | | UNIVERSITI U | TARA MALAYSIA | V . | 18 |
|---------------------------|--------------------|----------------------|----------------------|---------------|-------------------|----------|
| INSTITUTION & PROGRAMS | CREDIT TRANSFER | SABBATICAL LEAVES | EXCHANGE STUDENTS | RECIPROCAL | JOINT RESEARCH | TRAINING |
| UPSI | | | | | | |
| DEAKIN | | | | | | |
| UPI | | | | | -22 | |
| SYIAH KUALA | | | | | | |
| AR-RANIRY | | | 11 - 14 - 11 | | | |
| MEDAN STATE UNI | | | | | | |
| KUPU | | | | | | |
| UUM | | | | | | |
| IIU | | | | | | |
| PNU | | | | | | |
| DAAD | | | | J | | |

| INICTITUTE | UNIVERSITAS PENDIDIKAN INDONESIA (UPI) | | | | | | | | | |
|---------------------------|--|----------------------|--|------------|-------------------|----------|--|--|--|--|
| INSTITUTION & PROGRAMS | CREDIT TRANSFER | SABBATICAL LEAVES | EXCHANGE STUDENTS | RECIPROCAL | JOINT RESEARCH | TRAINING | | | | |
| UPSI | | | | | | | | | | |
| DEAKIN | | | | | | | | | | |
| UPI | | | | | | | | | | |
| SYIAH KUALA | | | | | | | | | | |
| AR-RANIRY | | | | | | | | | | |
| MEDAN STATE UNI | | | | | | | | | | |
| KUPU | | | | | | | | | | |
| UUM | | | | | | | | | | |
| IIU | | | | | | | | | | |
| PNU | | | 74 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - | No. | | | | | | |
| DAAD | | | | | | | | | | |

| MOTITUE | UNIVERSITAS NEGERI MEDAN (UNM) | | | | | | | | |
|---------------------------|--------------------------------|----------------------|----------------------|------------|-------------------|----------|--|--|--|
| INSTITUTION & PROGRAMS | CREDIT TRANSFER | SABBATICAL LEAVES | EXCHANGE STUDENTS | RECIPROCAL | JOINT RESEARCH | TRAINING | | | |
| UPSI | | | | | | | | | |
| DEAKIN | | | | | | | | | |
| UPI | | | | | | | | | |
| SYIAH KUALA | | | | | | | | | |
| AR-RANIRY | | | | | | | | | |
| MNU (MEDAN) | | | | | | | | | |
| KUPU | | | | | | | | | |
| UUM | | | | | | | | | |
| IIU | | | | | | | | | |
| PNU | | | | | | | | | |
| DAAD | | | | | | | | | |

| MOTITUE | UNIVERSITI PENDIDIKAN SULTAN IDRIS (UPSI) | | | | | | | | |
|---------------------------|---|----------------------|---------------------------------------|------------|-------------------|----------|--|--|--|
| INSTITUTION & PROGRAMS | CREDIT TRANSFER | SABBATICAL LEAVES | EXCHANGE STUDENTS | RECIPROCAL | JOINT RESEARCH | TRAINING | | | |
| UPSI | | | | | | | | | |
| DEAKIN | | | N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N | | | | | | |
| UPI | | | | | | | | | |
| SYIAH KUALA | | | | | | | | | |
| AR-RANIRY | | | | | | | | | |
| MNU (MEDAN) | | | | | | | | | |
| KUPU | | | | | | | | | |
| UUM | | | | | | | | | |
| IIU | | | | | | | | | |
| PNU | | | | | | | | | |
| DAAD | | | | | | | | | |

DEAKIN UNIVERSITY MELBOURNE, AUSTRALIA

DEAKIN UNIVERSITY IS OFFERING DUAL DEGREE PROGRAMS WITH MEMBERS OF CAPEU IN THE AREAS OF:

- 1. TEACHING ENGLISH AS A FOREIGN LANGUAGE
- 2. MATHEMATICS EDUCATION
- 3. SCIENCE EDUCATION

6 MOTHS AT HOME UNIVERSITY AND 9 MONTHS AT DEAKIN UNIVERSITY

15 MONTHS PROGRAM LEADING TOWARDS MASTER'S OF EDUCATION IN:

- 1. MATHEMATICS EDUCATION
- 2. SCIENCE EDUCATION
- TEACHING ENGLISH AS A FOREIGN LANGUAGE

THE STUDENTS WILL HAVE TWO DEGREES, FROM HOME UNIVERSITY AND ALSO FROM DEAKIN UNIVERSITY. THE TOTAL COST FOR ALL CREDITS AT DEAKIN IS AUS\$ 12,000 IF THERE IS A BATCH OF 15 STUDENTS, DEAKIN IS OFFERING A NATIVE SPEAKER OF ENGLISH TO PREPARE STUDENTS AT HOME UNIVERSITY FOR A PERIOD OF 10 WEEKS.

THE HOME UNIVERSITY ONLY PREPARES ACCOMMODATION FOR THIS NATIVE SPEAKER.

DAAD (GERMAN ACADEMIC EXCHANGE SERVICES)

THERE ARE 264 UNIVERSITIES IN ALL OVER GERMANY UNDER THE COOPERATION WITH DAAD.

DAAD WILLARRANGE FOR TRAINING AND RESEARCH WITH GERMANY UNIVERSITIES FOR CAPEU MEMBERS.

CAPEU JOURNAL

The Journal of the Consortium of Asia Pacific **Education Universities**

Volume 1

April 2015

Special Issue:

"CONTEMPORARY ISSUES SPECIAL **EDUCATIONAL NEEDS"**



Editorial Board:

Special Issue Editors: Dr James Campbell, Dr Kway Eng Hock and Professor lan Robottom

Australia

Professor Ian Robottom James Campbell **Deakin University**

Indonesia:

Dr. Mujidto AK University of Surabaya

Malaysia:

Dr. Kway Eng Hock SEAMEO Regional Centre for Special Education Needs

> Dr. Qismullah Yusuf Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris

Assoc Prof Dr. Mohd Hanafi Mohd Yassin National University of Malaysia

Assoc. Prof. Dr. Loh Sau Cheong University of Malaysia

Thailand:

Assoc. Prof. Dr. Suwimon Udom-Piriyasak Suan Dusit Rajabat University

Foreword

This volume is the inaugural issue of the official *Journal of the Consortium of Asia-Pacific Education Universities (CAPEU)*. CAPEU was established in 2013 with the following vision statement:

"To envision changes and innovations in education, teacher training, research and community services among education universities in Asia and Pacific Region."

CAPEU is a non-profit consortium of education universities or universities in the Asia-Pacific region that have a strong Faculty of Education. CAPEU has around 20 member universities in Indonesia. Brunei, Malaysia, Australia, Taiwan, USA and Europe. This consortium is opened to developing partnerships with non-membereducation universities or universities with a strong faculty of education in Asia-Pacific region, as well as for-profit and nonprofit organizations for the benefits of member universities of the consortium. This consortium commenced operations in April 2013 by holding the first conference with member universities at the Indonesian Embassy in Kuala Lumpur and at the Sultan Idris Education University in Tanjung Malim, Perak, Malaysia, about 50 minutes drive to the north of Kuala Lumpur. CAPEU aims to improve the quality of education of its members in skills related to education, teacher training programs and services, community services, research and publication. The programs such as professional educational policies, curricular and managerial effectiveness, and research and outreach services will be focused in all member universities and countries of the consortium. CAPEU will also publish its own academic journal.

As the title of this journal indicates, the focus of the articles included here is on Special Educational Needs — the theme of the first international conference organized by the Consortium. Most of the articles are research-based, presenting accounts of specific projects relating to the overall theme of Special Educational Needs; in doing so these articles present new insights, perspectives and knowledge on this topic. Overall the issue makes a significant contribution to research in the region.

Research may be defined in terms of two elements or 'moments': the first moment is the generation of new knowledge; the second moment is scholarship --making this new knowledge public. By publishing these research articles in this journal, the second 'scholarship moment' of making this new knowledge public is achieved. This is an important step as publishing research enables others to benefit from it as well.

However the value of scholarship is not confined to its publication here in this journal – rather, this is just the beginning. Putting our thinking 'out there' is not only a means of sharing evidence-based ideas among a broader community of interest, it is also a vital step in enhancing the rigor of research work. Scholarship (publishing research results) exposes those results to critical appraisal and critique within a broader community of inquirers, and this broader critical engagement has the capacity to strengthen the impact and rigor of the research work. Scholarship (publishing work in journals like this one) is an important component of enhancing the quality of the 'new knowledge' being 'made public'.

Scholarship in this journal has another valuable outcome. It contributes to the visibility and positioning of the Consortium of Asia-Pacific Education Universities as the organization sponsoring the Journal. The scholarship is evidence of the significant research being undertaken within member institutions of CAPEU and provides a basis in evidence to support the decision-making, operations and reputation of the organization.

The emergence of this scholarship in Special Educational Needs indicates the continuing development of CAPEU as an important organization of academic institutions in the region. I congratulate the organisers of the conference and the Board of Management of CAPEU for conducting the range of academic activities of which this Journal is but one.

Professor Ian Robottom Deakin University April 2015





Name of Universities and their Representaives for 5 th Board of Director Meeting & Round Table Meeting of Consortium of Asia-Pacific Education Universities

Deakin University, Melboune, Australia

Date: 11 May 2015

| No. | Name of University/Center | Country | Name of Representative | Title/Position | |
|-----|---|-------------------------|--|---|-----------------------|
| 1. | Sultan Idris Education University | Malaysia | Dato Prof. Dr Zakaria Kasa | Vice Chansellor | President |
| 2. | Deakin University | Melbourne, Australia | Prof. Dr. Ian Robottom | Associate Dean for International relations | Vice President 1 |
| 3. | Education University Bandung (UPI) | Indonesia | Prof Dr. Sunaryo Kartadinata | Reactor | Vice President 2 |
| 4. | Sultan Idris Education University | Malaysia | Dato Prof. Dr. Noraini Idris | Deputy Vice Chansellor | Secretaty 1 |
| 5. | Syiah Kuala University, Banda Aceh | Indonesia | Prof. Dr. Samsul Rizal, M.Eng | Rector | Secretary 2 |
| 6. | Ar_raniry Islamic Institute Banda Aceh | Indonesia | Prof. Dr. Farid Wajidi, M.A | Rector | Committee |
| 7. | Malikussaleh University | Indonesia | Dr. Apridal, M.Si | Rector | Committee |
| 8. | Makassar State University, Makssar, Sulawesi | Indonesia | Prof. Dr. H. Arismunandar, | Rector | Committee |
| 9. | Universitas Negeri Semarang | Indonesia | Prof. Dr .Fathur Rokhman | Rector | Committee |
| 10. | Universitas Negeri Yogjakarta | Indonesia | Prof Dr. Rochmat Wahab | Rector | Committee |
| 11. | Universitas Negeri Surabaya | Indonesia | Prof. Dr. Nurhasan | Rector | Committee |
| 12. | Universitas Sriwijaya, Palembang | Indonesia | Prof. Dr. Badia Perizade | Rector | Committee |
| 13. | Universitas Negeri Medan, Sumatera Utara | Indonesia | Prof Dr. Syawal Gultom | Rector | Committee |
| 14. | Universitas Negeri Padang | Indonesia | Prof. Dr. Yanuar Kiram | Rector | Committee |
| 15. | Fatoni University, Yala | Thailand | Prof. Dr. Abdul Wahab | Rector | Committee |
| 16. | Seri Begawan Religious Teacher's University College | Brueni Darussalam | Dr. Hjh Masnon Hj Ibrahim | Rector | Committee |
| 17. | International Islamic University | Malaysia | Dato Seri Prof Dr Zaleha Kamaruddin | Rector | New member |
| 18. | Universiti Utara Malaysia (UUM) | Malaysia | Dato Seri Prof Dr Muhammad Mustafa Isahak | Vice Chansellor | New member |
| 21. | Sultan Idris Education University | Malaysia | Prof. Dr. Noor Shah Saad | Senior Lecturer | Treasurer |
| 22. | Sultan Idris Education University | Malaysia | Asso Prof. Dr. Qismullah Yusuf | Senior Lecturer | Secretariat |
| 23. | Sultan Idris Education University | Malaysia | Asso. Prof. Dr. Dato Paduka Junaidi Abu Bakar | Deputy Vice Chansellor | Committee |
| 24. | Indonesian Embassy | Indonesia | Porf. Dr. Rusdi Thaib | Education Attache | Honorary Committee |

| 25. | German Academic Exchange Services (DAAD) | Representativ e Office to Indonesia | Dr. Irene Jensen | Country Director | Honorary Committee (Partners) |
|-----|--|---|----------------------------|------------------|-------------------------------------|
| 26. | East-West Centre | USA | Prof. Dr. Torrence Bigalke | President | Honorary Committee (Partners) |
| 27. | Miyagi University of Education, Japan | Japan | Prof Dr. Kuzuyuki Mikami | President | Proposed Partners |
| 28. | Philippine Normal University | Philippine | Prof. Dr. Ester B. Ogena | President | Proposed member |
| | | | | | |

Delegates for Round Table & Annual General Meeting CAPEU (11-12 May 2015)

- 1. Prof. Da/to Dr. Zakaria Kasa President CAPEU, UPSI
- 2. Prof. Darto Dr. Noraini Idris Secretary CAPEU, UPSI
- 3. Prof. Dr. Noor Shah Saad Treasurer CAPEU, UPSI
- 4. Assoc. Prof Dr. Qismullah Yusof CAPEU, UPSI
- 5. Prof. Dr. Amir Hassan bin Dawi Dean Faculty of Education & Human Development, UPSI
- 6. Prof. Fuad Abdul Hamied, M.A., Ph.D., Head, Board of Professors of UPI
- 7. Prof. Ace Suryadi, M.Sc., Ph.D., Director, Australian Studies Centre, UPI
- 8. Mr. Sri Harto, Director, Office of International Education and Relations, UPI
- 9. Prof. Dr. Fathur Rokhman, M.Hum, Rector of Semarang State University
- 10. Prof. Y.L. Sukestiyarno, M.S. PhD, Vice Rector for Development & Partnership, Semarang State University
- 11. Dr. Ester B. Ogena President, Philippine Normal University
- 12. Dr. Felicia I. Yeban, Philippine Normal University, Vice President for University Relations and Advancement
- 13. Dr. Leticia V. Catris Dean, College of Teacher Education, Philippine Normal University
- 14. Prof. Sofendi, M.A., Ph.D. Rector, Sriwijaya University
- 15. Prof. Apridar Abdurrahman (Rector of Universitas Malikussaleh)
- 16. Rita Meutia Idris (Lecturer) Universitas Malikussaleh
- 17. Muhammad Heikal Buchari (Head of Quality Assurance Department) Universitas Malikussaleh
- 18. Dr Hj. Adanan Hj Basar Deputy Rector, Kolej Universiti Perguruan Ugama (KUPU),
- 19. Dr Ahmad Humaizi Hj Samihon Kolej Universiti Perguruan Ugama (KUPU), Brunei
- 20. Prof. Dr. Ramlee Mustapha UPSI
- 21. Asso Prof Dr Izham Ghazali Dean School of Education & Communation, Universiti Utara Malaysia
- 22. Prof. Dr Samsul Rizal. Rector, Syiah Kuala University. Aceh. Indonesia
- 23. Asso. Prof Dr. Nazamuddin, Deputy Rector, Sylah Kuala University. Aceh. Indonesia
- 23. Asso. Prof Dr. Nazamuddin, Deputy Rector, Sylan Rusia Silversity, Aceh. Indonesia.
 24. Dr. Jufri, Dean Faculty of Education, Sylah Kuala University, Aceh. Indonesia.
 25. Professor lan Robottom, Faculty of Arts & Education, Deakin University, Australia.

 Australia

26 Dr James Campbell, - ---Deakin University, Melbourne, Australia



CONSORTIUM OF ASIA-PACIFIC EDUCATION UNIVERSITIES (CAPEU)

Committed to changes in Teacher Training and Education, Research in Education & Community Development

PULAMI Office, Block 9, Ground Floor. Faculty of Education and Human Development Building

Sultan Idris Education University, 35900 Tanjong Malim, Perak, MALAYSIA

Website: www.capeu.upsi; Phone: +6015-4811-7979/7977; Fax: +6015-4811-7297

Contact Numbers and E-mail: +6017-349-2451; E-mail: yusufqismullah@gmail.com

qismullah@fppm.upsi.edu.my & noorshah@fppm.upsi.edu.my; +6012-515-6334

ROUNDTABLE MEETING

11-12 May 2015

Deakin University City Campus, Melbourne

Australia

1. WELCOMING SPEECH

The Roundtable meeting was started with a short speech of Prof. Robottom, followed by the introduction of Prof. Dr. Christine, the Dean of the Faculty of Education and Deakin University. Prof. Robottom said that it was a good combination where BoD of CAPEU was combined with the Roundtable Meeting on certain academic aspects of concerns of members of CAPEU, especially current trends and issues on education, issues and problems facing by member countries.

2. FIRST PRESENTATION (DEAKIN)

The First Presentation was delivered by Prof. Dr. Christine, the Dean of the Faculty of Education of Deakin University. Her presentation was focused on the system of education that have been practiced in Australia and efforts that have been done to improve the quality of education of her country. She further emphasized that Australia, in addition of its own, also seek other strengths from other countries, such as Canada and several European countries, to improve the quality of education in her country. She also said that each state in Australia has its own policies, however, it also based on the national guidelines provided by the Federal Government.

3. SECOND PRESENTATION (UPI BANDUNG)

The second presentation was delivered by Prof. Dr. Ace Suryadi, presenting how UPI was involved in shaping the national policies of teacher training to be developed by the Ministry of National Education of Indonesia. Indonesia, he said is still in the process of seeking other alternatives or choices to further improve the quality of teacher training in Indonesia. UPI or Indonesia as a whole is willing to cooperate with other institutions and other countries to improve her education.

Indonesia has been working with NIE in Singapore and other several institutes in several other countries. One of the main problems, he said, that the policies and programs of teacher education at the higher institution are not always in line with the policies made by the local department of education (district and province). The Ministry would like to improve the quality of education but at the same time it keeps issuing "permits" for private sectors to open new teacher training institutions without proper facilities and labs for teacher training. In recruiting teachers, the BAKN is setting other policies by keeping appointing the graduates of low quality teacher training institutes and the number is quite high every year.

4. THIRD PRESENTATION

Prof. Dato' Dr. Noraini Idris, the Secretary of BOD of CAPEU presented her paper on the current researches being conducted by UPSI in improving the quality of teacher training programs at Malaysian universities.

5. FOURTH PRESENTATION

The Fourth Presentation was delivered by Prof. Dr. Ari Purbayanto and Qismullah Yusuf on the importance of Providing education to the school-aged children in Sabah and Sarawak. There are more than 60,000 school-aged children in the two eastern states of Malaysia. They are trapped in between the problems: no teacher to teach, no facilities to support and no administrative support s from the home and the new home where they were born (Malaysia). The negotiation has been for so long and no solutions are yet to be found between the two nations. CAPEU is proposing that all members from Indonesia and all members from Malaysia work together and use "teaching practice" courses to initially solved the problems prior to having a permanent solutions being negotiated between the two nations.

6. PEACE EDUCATION IN SOUTHERN THAILAND

Fatony University is a member of CAPEU. The political conflict in Southern Thailand has been there for more than 20 years. It needs to be solved as soon as possible to save life and be able to proceed and improve the quality education in the six southern provinces. CAPEU is not a political organization but an organization that cares for education of all school-aged children. Prof. Dr. Fuad Abdul Hamid, a senior professor in Anthropology from UPI presented the paper to seek possible answers to the problems in the regions.

He has been involved in setting peace education classes at UPSI as the results of training provided to him and other senior lecturers at UPI by Finland, Sweden and other European countries. One of the solutions proposed by Prof. Hamid was that there should be a steering committee between members of CAPEU to design acceptable peace education curricula to be used by education and social institutions in Southern provinces of Thailand. Proposing peace through the mind and use education as a tool will be more sustainable for both sides, the Government and also the opponents. He said that Indonesian some of flatforms can be used as a model in solving a conflict.

Melbourne, 14 May 2015 Qismullah Yusuf Secretariat of CAPEU

Delegates for Round Table & Annual General Meeting CAPEU

(11-12 May 2015)

- 1. Prof. Darto Dr. Zakaria Kasa President CAPEU, UPSI
- Prof. Darto Dr. Noraini Idris Secretary CAPEU, UPSI
- 3. Prof. Dr. Noor Shah Saad Treasurer CAPEU, UPSI
- 4. Assoc. Prof Dr. Qismullah Yusof CAPEU, UPSI
- 5. Prof. Dr. Amir Hassan bin Dawi Dean Faculty of Education & Human Development, UPSI
- 6. Prof. Fuad Abdul Hamied, M.A., Ph.D., Head, Board of Professors of UPI
- Prof. Ace Suryadi, M.Sc., Ph.D., Director, Australian Studies Centre, UPI
- 8. Mr. Sri Harto, Director, Office of International Education and Relations, UPI
- 9. Prof. Dr. Fathur Rokhman, M.Hum, Rector of Semarang State University
- 10. Prof. Y.L. Sukestiyarno, M.S. PhD, Vice Rector for Development & Partnership, Semarang State University
- 11. Dr. Ester B. Ogena President, Philippine Normal University
- 12. Dr. Felicia I. Yeban, Philippine Normal University, Vice President for University Relations and Advancement
- 13. Dr. Leticia V. Catris Dean, College of Teacher Education, Philippine Normal University
- 14. Prof. Sofendi, M.A., Ph.D. Rector, Sriwijaya University
- 15. Prof. Apridar Abdurrahman (Rector of Universitas Malikussaleh)
- 16. Rita Meutia Idris (Lecturer), Universitas Malikussaleh
- 17. Muhammad Heikal Buchari (Head of Quality Assurance Department) Universitas Malikussaleh
- 18. Dr Hj. Adanan Hj Basar Deputy Rector, Kolej Universiti Perguruan Ugama (KUPU), Brunei
- 19. Dr Ahmad Humaizi Hj Samihon Kolej Universiti Perguruan Ugama (KUPU) , Brunei
- 20. Prof. Dr. Ramlee Mustapha UPSI
- 21. Asso Prof Dr Izham Ghazali Dean School of Education & Communation, Universiti Utara Malaysia
- 22. Prof. Dr Samsul Rizal. Rector, Syiah Kuala University. Aceh. Indonesia
- 23. Asso. Prof Dr. Nazamuddin, Deputy Rector, Sylah Kuala University. Aceh. Indonesia
- 24. Dr. Jufri, Dean Faculty of Education,, Syiah Kuala University, Aceh. Indonesia.
- 25. Prof. Dr. Ian Robpttom, Faculty of Arts & Eduaction, Deakin University, Australia.
- 26. Dr. James Cambell, Faculty of Arts & Eduaction, Deakin University, Australia.
- 27. Ms. Anne Roubin, Faculty of Arts & Eduaction, Deakin University, Australia.

11-12 May 2015.

Deakin University, Melbourne, Australia

BOARD OF DIRECTOR CAPEU 2015 – 2017

| University | Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris, Malaysia, Vice Chanselor, UPSI | Deakin University, Melbourne, Australia | Universiti Pendidikan Indonesia, Rector | Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris, Malaysia, Deputy Vice Chanselor, UPSI | Universitas Syiah Kuala, Aceh, Indonesia | Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris, Malaysia | Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris, Malaysia | Kolej Universiti Perguruan Ugama, Seri Begawan, Brunei Darul Salam, Ra'es | Universitas Negeri Semarang, Semarang. Rector. | Universitas Negeri Sriwijaya, Palembang, Indonesia Rector | Malikussaleh, Aceh, Indonesia, Reactor | Philippine Normal University, Philippine, President | Universiti Utara Malaysia, Vice Canselor |
|-----------------|---|--|--|---|---|---|---|---|---|--|---|--|---|
| Name of Members | Prof Dato Dr Zakaria Kasa, | Prof Dr. Ian Morris Robottom | To be conformed, Rector | Prof Dato Dr. Noraini Idris, | Prof Dr Samsul Rizal | Prof Dr. Noor Shah Saad | Asso. Prof Dr. Qismullah Yusof | Dr. Hjh Masnon Hj Ibrahim | Prof Dr. Fathur Rokhman | Prof. Dr. Badia Perizade | Prof. Dr. Apridar, M.Si, | Prof. Dr. Ester B. Ogena | Prof. Dr Dato' Wira Muhammad Mustafa Isahak |
| Position of BOD | President CAPEU | Vice President 1 CAPEU | Vice President 2 CAPEU | Secretary 1 CAPEU | Secretary 2 CAPEU | Treasurer of CAPEU | Secretariat CAPEU | Committee | Committee | Committee | Committee | Committee | Committee |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

| Prof Dr. Christine Prof Dr. Christine Prof Dr. Rochmat Wahab Prof Dr. Abdul Wahab Prof Dr. Arismunandar MA Prof Dr. Arismunandar MA Prof Dr. Arismunandar MA Prof Dr. Syawal Gultom Prof Dr. Yanuar Kiram Prof Dr. Yanuar Kiram Prof Dr. Torrence Bigalke |
|---|
| |



CONSORTIUM OF ASIA-PACIFIC EDUCATION UNIVERSITIES (CAPEU)

Committed to changes in Teacher Training and Education, Research in Education & Community Development
PULAMI Office, Block 9, Ground Floor. Faculty of Education and Human Development Building
Sultan Idris Education University, 35900 Tanjong Malim, Perak, MALAYSIA
Website: www.capeu.upsi; Phone: +6015-4811-7979/7977; Fax: +6015-4811-7297
Contact Numbers and E-mail: +6017-349-2451; E-mail: yusufqismullah@gmail.com
qismullah@fppm.upsl.edu.my & noorshah@fppm.upsl.edu.my; +6012-515-6334

MINUTES OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS' MEETING OF CAPEU

At
DEAKIN UNIVERSITY, MELBOURNE, AUSTRALIA

1. ELECTION OF NEW BOD OF CAPEU

1.1 Welcoming Speech from the President

The President of CAPEU welcame all members of BoD of CAPEU that attended the session. He said that his two-year term as the President of CAPEU, as regulated in the MoU, has already expired and now it is time for other members to lead. It can be by one of the member from Malaysia, Indonesia, Deakin, Thailand, and Brunei Darussalam. Please feel free to propose a university as a member first and then followed by the leader of that university member.

Prof. Dr. Mohammad Izam of UUM proposed that Prof. Dr. Ir. Ari Purbayanto, Indonesian Education Attache to Malaysia chair this session. The first reason, he said that he is an honorary member of the BoD of CAPEU. Secondly it will be fair and more independent if it is not chaired by any member of CAPEU. The Secretary of CAPEU supported the proposal from UUM and followed by the President of BOD of CAPEU and other members.

Prof. Fuad Abdul Hamid from UPI once again asked: "If the quorum is not enough, will the results of the election be acceptable?". Many of the members said that it was not stated with the reasons that we had discussed previously when discussing the Financial Report.

1.2 Election of New BoD for the Second Term

Prof. Dr. dr. Badia Perizade, Rector of Universitas Sriwijaya said that CAPEU is still a half-boiled egg, please allow UPSI to continue to lead for another term. Her statement was supported by UUM, Deakin University, PNU and also the Indonesian Education Attache. Finally it was approved that CAPEU will be led by UPSI for the next two years as the host and also as the

Secretariat for administering CAPEU activities and home for the Secretary of its BoD. The new management of CAPEU for May 2013 to May 2017 is attached to this report as *Appendix I*.

The following are some additional comments from the floor after the election:

- 1). Prof. Robottom saluted Prof. Zakaria Kasa after he had been elected as the President of CAPEU for the Second Term.
- 2). Prof. Dr. Mohd. Izam from UUM said that, though still young CAPEU has been doing good job and suggested that at least to maintain as it is. However, more programs can be done when all hands are put together by all members and also supported by the partners.
- 3). Prof. Fuad Abdul Hamid of UPI said UPI appreciates what CAPEU has been doing though within a short period of time. Please develop better cooperation between members.
- 4). Prof. Badia, it is a half-boiled egg, keep the egg boiling till it is well done. I will be no more rector of Sriwijaya University within the next few months. My next Rector will support the program. I may be able to see you all again if the Seventh BoD of CAPEU be conducted by August or September this year.

2. CLOSING THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

2.1 Farewell Speech by the Host

As the host for this Roundtable Meeting and the Sixth BOD Meeting, and as the Deputy President of the CAPEU, Prof. Dr. Ian Robottom thanked all members that attended the meeting and hope to see all of them within the next few months. However, he proposed that Dr. Christ, the Dean for Research of the Faculty of Education of Deakin University be included as one of the committee members in the new management of CAPEU. The main reason is that he will be no longer full time staff by July this year and Dr. Christ will be supporting him to carry on programs of CAPEU.

For UPSI-Deakin Symposium and for any collaboration with other members, he also proposed that Assoc. Prof. Dr. James Campbell be appointed as one of the committees representing Deakin in the management. He is well-known in South East Asia and very knowledgeable for the region. The two proposals from Prof. Robottom were accepted by all members.

2.2 UPSI-DEAKIN Symposium

Early discussion was conducted a day prior to the Sixth BoD Meeting between Assoc. Prof. Dr. James Campbell, assoc. Prof. Dr. Qismullah Yusuf, Prof. Dr. Amir Hasan Dawi (Dean of the Faculty of Education) and Assoc. Prof. Dr. Noor Shah Saad for UPSI-Deakin Graduate Research Symposium. After having another meeting between Prof. Dr. Ian Robottom and Dr. Christ (Associate Dean of the Faculty of Education of Deakin University) and The Secretariat of CAPEU, it was concluded this Graduate Research Symposium is important.

The results of the First and Second Graduate Research Symposium between UPSI and Deakin University have been appreciated by the academicians, not only by the academicians within the two campuses but also by many teachers teaching around UPSI campus in Malaysia. Some of

the participants for the Second Symposium were from other states in Malaysia and few of them were from Indonesia and Thailand.

The final decision is to continue having this Graduate Research Symposium conducted between the two universities. The Third Deakin-UPSI Graduate Symposium will be conducted at Deakin University on the basis of reciprocality between the two universities. The Fifth one will be conducted at UPSI at the end of 2015.

Dr. Hj. Adenan bin Hj. Basar said that KUPU-SB is waiting for final date for the trilateral symposium between UIA – Fatony and KUPU-SB as agreed between the three members in the last program mapping of CAPEU at UPSI. The President of CAPEU suggested that Secretariat keep tracks on this plan. The Secretary of CAPEU suggested that the Secretariat and the Treasurer to contact UIA as the First Host of this Tri-Lateral symposium as soon as possible.

2.3 The New Management of CAPEU

The new management of the Board of Directors of CAPEU is presented in the Appendix I of this Report. The members for the management were proposed and approved by all members attended this Sixth BoD of CAPEU conducted at The Deakin University City Campus in Melbourne, Australia. (APPENDIX I)



CONSORTIUM OF ASIA-PACIFIC EDUCATION UNIVERSITIES (CAPEU)

Committed to changes in Teacher Training and Education, Research & Community Development
PULAMI Office, Block 9, Ground Floor. Faculty of Education and Human Development Building
Sultan Idris Education University, 35900 Tanjong Malim, Perak, MALAYSIA
Website: www.capeu.upsi; Phone: +6015-4811-7979/7977; Fax: +6015-4811-7297
Contact Numbers and E-mail: +6017-349-2451; E-mail: yusufqismullah@gmail.com
qismullah@fppm.upsi.edu.my & noorshah@fppm.upsi.edu.my; +6012-515-6334

REMARKS FROM THE SECRETARY OF THE CONSORTIUM

REPORTS OF CAPEU ACTIVITIES
April 23, 2013 – July 31, 2015

We are glad to inform that the members of this consortium had implemented many activities that benefited members and member countries. We do hope that we will be able to do more for the years to come. In addition to founding members by April 23, 2015 we have new members registered with CAPEU. The members are not only from Malaysia but also from the Philippines. We will be having new partners; Hong Kong Institute of Education and the Center for Special Education of the South-East Asian Ministries of Education Organization (SEAMEO). The consortium is also requesting the University Networks of the IMT-GT to be a partner for this consortium.

Exchange programs in the form of reciprocal seemed to be preferable by members of the consortium. As many as 32 students from UPSI, for instance, were sent to the Center for Risks Reduction Management (CRRM) at Syiah Kuala University in Banda Aceh to learn how to manage an evacuation center when a disaster happens. These students were trained not only by the CRRM but also by the National Search and Rescue Office of Banda Aceh. It is reported that many of these students participated in emergency programs provided by Malaysian Government when handling severe flood in six states in Northern Malaysia.

The first workshop on Special Education was conducted in Banda Aceh with the facilitators provided by the DAAD in Jakarta and Deakin University in Australia. The second workshop on Mapping program was conducted between members of the consortium to formally exchange programs reciprocally between members. The third workshop was conducted at the Universitas Pendidikan Indonesia in Bandung to write a formal proposal to be submitted to the Ministry of Education of Indonesia for providing education to the 63,000 school-aged children of Indonesian migrant workers in Sabah and Sawarak, Malaysia. The fourth workshop was conducted at Deakin University for developing the quality of teacher education among members of the consortium. The fifth workshop will be conducted at the Universitas Negeri Yogjakarta on Disaster Awareness, Preparedness and Management.

The partner schools of UPSI have started their reciprocals program through CAPEU. Kuala Kubu Baharu MARA High School, a partner school of UPSI in Selangor, sent 32 students to Fatih Bilingual School and Syiah Kuala Lab School in Banda Aceh. These students were merged with the students from the two schools in Banda Aceh and exchanged academic matters and cultural experiences between the students from the two countries. Semarang State University has been sending its students to UPSI for the last two years. Similar exchange programs have also been conducted between UUM and members of the consortium in Indonesia.



MEMBERS OF THE CONSORTIUM OF ASIA-PACIFIC EDUCATION UNIVERSITIES (CAPEU)

MEMBERS OF CAPEU



PARTNERS OF CAPEU









MEMBERS OF THE CONSORTIUM OF ASIA-PACIFIC EDUCATION UNIVERSITIES (CAPEU)

| No | Name of Member | Located in the City | Country | Status |
|----|-------------------------------------|----------------------|-----------------|----------|
| 1 | Fatony University | Yala, Pattani | Thailand | Member |
| 2 | Burapha University | Chiang Mai | Thailand | Member |
| 3 | Philippines Normal University | Manila | The Philippines | Member |
| 4 | College University Teacher Training | Bandar Seri Begawan | Brunei | Member |
| | , | | Darussalam | |
| 5 | Sultan Idris Education University | Tanjong Malim, Perak | Malaysia | Member |
| 6 | University Utara Malaysia | Sintok, Kedah | Malaysia | Member |
| 7 | International Islamic University | Gombak, Selangor | Malaysia | Member |
| | Malaysia | | | |
| 8 | Deakin University | Melbourne | Australia | Member |
| 9 | Curtin University | Perth | Australia | Member |
| 10 | Syiah Kuala University | Banda Aceh | Indonesia | Member |
| 11 | Ar-Raniry State University | Banda Aceh | Indonesia | Member |
| 12 | Malikussaleh University | Lhokseumawe, Aceh | Indonesia | Member |
| 13 | Medan State University | Medan | Indonesia | Member |
| 14 | Padang State University | Padang | Indonesia | Member |
| 15 | Sriwijaya University | Palembang | Indonesia | Member |
| 16 | Indonesia Education University | Bandung | Indonesia | Member |
| 17 | Semarang State University | Semarang | Indonesia | Member |
| 18 | Yogjakarta State University | Yogjakarta | Indonesia | Member |
| 19 | Surabaya State University | Surabaya | Indonesia | Member |
| 20 | Bali (Ganesha) State University | Bali | Indonesia | Member |
| 21 | Makassar State University | Makassar | Indonesia | Member |
| 22 | Universitas Islam Kalimantan | Banjarmasin | Indonesia | Member |
| 23 | Gorontalo State University | Gorontalo | Indonesia | Observer |
| 24 | Papua State University | Manokwari | Indonesia | Observer |
| 25 | Raja Ali Haji Maritime University | Pangkal Pinang, Riau | Indonesia | Observer |
| 26 | Jakarta State University | Jakarta | Indonesia | Observer |
| 27 | Lambung Mangkurat University | Banjarmasin | Indonesia | Observer |
| 28 | Antasari State University | Banjarmasin | Indonesia | Observer |
| 29 | Muhammadiyah University | Palangkaraya | Indonesia | Observer |
| 30 | Palangkaraya State University | Palangkaraya | Indonesia | Observer |
| 31 | Sekolah Tinggi Keguruan & Ilmu | Banda Aceh | Indoensia | Observer |
| | Pendidikan Bina Bangsa | | | |
| 32 | Deakin University | Melbourne | Australia | Partner |
| 33 | German Academic Exchange Services | Bonn | Germany | Partner |
| 34 | Miyagi University of Education | Miyagi | Japan | Partner |
| 35 | East-West Center | Honolulu, Hawaii | United States | Partner |

3.1 Students' Exchanges

Students' exchanges programs that have been taken placed between Sultan Idris Education University (SIEU) - Syiah Kuala University (SKU) in Banda Aceh and Indonesia Education University, formerly known as IKIP Bandung, have been highly appreciated by students and faculty members of both countries. They have gone through academic and cultural exchanges during the last five years. Similar students' exchanges can be developed among members of consortium and with partner universities outside the consortium and among members of the consortium. UPSI and Syiah Kuala University have also conducted students' exchange program in disaster management where 32 students from UPSI were sent to Aceh for training.

3.2 Faculty Exchanges

The Sultan Idris Education University (SIEU), Syiah Kuala University (SKU), Sriwijaya University and Indonesia Education University (IEU) in Bandung have gone through several phases of faculty exchanges during the last three years after the first MoUs were signed between the three universities. Such exchanges will ignite research collaborations and establish dual/double degree programs between member universities and with partner universities. The first joint publication between SIEU and IEU was published and launched last September in Kuala Lumpur. Faculty exchange has also been conducted between Syiah Kuala University and UPSI.

3.3 Dual/Double Degree Program

Student and faculty exchanges and sabbatical programs will also be initial steps in establishing dual or double degree programs within the member universities in the consortium. New departments of a member university can request help from stronger university in certain areas of studies to improve the quality of its training and education services to meet the needs of more qualified lecturers/professor for a member country/university in certain areas of studies.

Deakin University in Melbourne, Australia has developed double degree program in EFL with Syiah Kuala University in Banda Aceh and as many as 45 Master's degree students in EFL have graduated from the university and are now serving the needs of EFL teachers in Aceh. Almost 100 teachers of Aceh, pursuing their Master's degrees in Science and Mathematics Education have completed their degrees at Deakin University. They are now improving the quality of Modelling High Schools in the province. Similar programs can be developed with other universities in the consortium and with other partner universities in other member countries.



3.4 Joint Research and Publications

In addition to establishing collaborations as mentioned above, the consortium will also develop cooperation with member universities in conducting joint researches to be funded bilaterally or trilaterally between the core members and also with other party interested in the projects. Taiwan universities are known for their publications and quotations during the last ten years. Universities in Taiwan can be approached to develop this types of collaboration. To enable the consortium in managing the joint research and publications there should be a committee established by the consortium and appoint a country/university/ institution to manage all researches and publications written by faculties from members of the consortium, partner universities and

The best students in their final year (the fourth year for undergraduate) in selected areas of studies will be selected and sent to SIEU and other members in Malaysia to pursue one semester for course works, preferably in the last two semesters of their programs. After completing the first semester in their last year, these students will be assigned to teach for a period of 12 months in Malaysian estates and mega projects and returned to Indonesia with dual degrees through the agreed transfer credits between SIEU and Indonesian education universities. Similar programs can be made for Master's degree programs.

The main obstacle in coping with the above problem is "visa" for Indonesian teachers to be sent to Malaysia. By developing a dual degree/double degree or transfer credit programs with SIEU and other Malaysian members, the visa can be assisted by Malaysian universities and Indonesian teachers can be sent to Malaysia to provide education to many "unreachable learners" of Indonesia in Malaysia under the supervision of both; Malaysian universities and Indonesian universities. The program can be carried out in two forms:

(1) KKN-Like Mode

The first program is called Kuliah Kerja Nyata (KKN), an internship program in Indonesian higher education system in which every student is compulsory to conduct a real community services for duration between 4 to 6 months in the fields prior to having diploma awarded to a student. This program can be implemented when there is a partner/member university in Malaysia that is willing to register Indonesian students (undergraduate degree) to take a semester or a year at a Malaysian university and conduct 12-month practicum to provide compulsory education to more than 63,000 school-aged children and many Malaysian plantations/estates legally in any state in Malaysia. The budget for Indonesian students to be sent to Malaysian plantations/projects may be paid by Indonesian government and all legal documents for the program will be handled by a Malaysian universities.

(2) Formal Teaching Services

The second proposed program will be through formal attachments/services to be conducted by Indonesian/Malaysia education university graduate students. These students are to be awarded scholarships (from Indonesian Government) to pursue their Master's degree programs at a Malaysian education university for duration of 3 semesters; one year for their course works at a Malaysian university and another 12 months for their teaching practices to teach the 63.000 school-aged children of Indonesian migrant workers at Malaysian estates in Sabah and Sarawak and other states in Malaysia. Programs are now being designed between institutions in Indonesia to solve the problems in having basic education to Indonesian pupils in Malaysia.

Similar cross-border programs can be developed between other member countries in the consortium. There are also children of migrant workers from Thailand, Myanmar, the Philippines and other countries in Malaysia. It will benefit the cross-border countries and solve parts of the problems sooner.

3.8 Professional Teacher Training Program

The members of the consortium can also develop joint training programs to train teachers, principals, school administrators, and other professions related to education at any member of the consortium in which trainers are selected from professional staff from members of the consortium. Through MoU signed between Government of Aceh and SIEU, for instances, two batches of math and science teachers and principals of modelling schools from Aceh have been trained by UPSI (with venues in Aceh and Malaysia) without taking any profits. The trainings were conducted on the basis of "CSR-corporate social responsibilities" of the Sultan Idris Education University.

3.9 Professional Attachments

As it is with the training programs, "attachment" is another important program that can be developed in developing, improving and widening horizons of education and training management in each member of the consortium. The attachment can be at each member of the consortium or arranged by each member at each

students to participate. The fees for students who will present their papers at the conference will be reduced or may be waived. The key-note speakers for this conference were donated by DAAD, Deakin University and Sultan Idris Education University.

The Second seminar was conducted at the Kolej University Perguruan Ugama Seri Begawan in Brunei Darussalam, sponsored by the CAPEU, the Ministry of Religious Affairs of Brunei Darussalam and the Ministry of Education of Brunei. The Third conference will be held at the Philippines Normal University in Manila, the Philippines. The topics will be Education in Diversity and the key-note speakers will be donated by Deakin University, Hong Kong Institute of Education and Miyagi University of Education.

3.13 Automatic Credit Transfer

All transcripts of all members of universities must be translated into English and these credits are transferable between members of consortium except for subjects related to state ideology, philosophy, religion and local contents. This agreement is valid for undergraduate and graduate levels of studies. Members of the consortium must have similar course descriptions of core courses offered by members of the consortium and approved academically and administratively by member universities. In addition to course descriptions, member universities should also approve "credit loads" of each subject/course offered by members and transferable with similar credit values.

3.14 Reduction of Accommodation Cost

Should students from members of consortium pursue their programs outside of their own campus, the host campus must charge students of members of the consortium with "local rate" to increase higher degree of exchange between students of members of university. Through this agreement, even students without scholarships may be able pursue their degrees at any faculty/program outside of their own original university in member countries.

3.15 Diploma Accreditation

Diplomas issued by each member university will be accredited through systems of each member countries. There should be a system developed jointly by related ministries in each country in which diplomas (undergraduate, graduate or other forms of formal degrees) are officially accredited. This system will convince higher rate of student and faculty exchanges between members of the consortium.

3.16 Sabbatical Leave Program

Assoc. Prof. Dr. Jane Teng Yan Fang, a faculty member of the Faculty of Economics and Management of Sultan Idris Education University had returned from East-West Center in Hawaii and now resume her teaching at her faculty. Assoc. Prof. Goh Swee Chee just returned from Deakin University after spending almost 9 months sabbatical leave at the university. Assoc. Prof. Dr. Siti Eishah Moekhsien is now at Deakin University conducting her sabbatical leave for the same period as Dr. Goh. Dr. Ikhsan from FPPM is now at Syiah Kuala University conducting his Sabbatical Leave at the university. He will be there for a period of 6 months. Similar programs are now being developed with DAAD in Germany and Miyagi University of Education in Japan. The program can also be developed among members or partners of the consortium.

Assoc. Prof. Dr. Mohd. Uzi bin Dollah will be leaving for Deakin University conducting his sabbatical leave at the university. He will be developing the concept of "mathematical values" in teaching mathematics together with a professor of mathematics at Deakin University. An associate professor from the Faculty of Languages and Communication of UPSI is planning to conduct her sabbatical leave at Deakin University where she will, not only working for her sabbatical leave, also be co-teacher for teaching Mandarin Language at Deakin University.

The visit was intended to develop special ties with this university in South Celebes Island. One of the plans was to develop a transfer-credit program between the two universities between FEHD of UPSI and the Faculty of Education of Makassar State University. This was planned to be a model and will be duplicated between other members of CAPEU. It was a delay due to having new regulations from UPSI and it will be implemented by the year 2015.

Makassar State University can also develop this transfer credit programs with Universiti Utara Malaysia in Sintok, with the Universiti Islam Antarabangsa Malaysia and other universities in Indonesia.

9). Visiting Malikussaleh University (January 2014)

The team from CAPEU, consisted the Dean of the Faculty of Education and Human Development and met the Rector, all deputy rectors and all deans of Malikusaleh University. The purposes were to discuss possible collaboration with the university and the mayor of the City of Lhokseumawe, Aceh, Indonesia for sending its students to members of CAPEU for degree programs. Malikussaleh university is a member of CAPEU.

10). Visiting Syiah Kuala University (January 2014)

The visit was made by the Dean of the Faculty of Education and Human Development of UPSI, accompanied by the Deputy Dean for Research and Innovation of the faculty met the Rector and Dean of Faculty of Education and Teacher Training of Syiah Kuala University on the request of Deputy Governor of Aceh for provided possible assistance of UPSI to start Special Education Program in Aceh for preparing and or replacing special education teachers for Aceh since many of their teachers were dead or missing in the December 26th, 2004 tsunami.

11). PCK Training for teachers in Aceh Besar (February 2015)

On the request of the Mayor of Aceh Besar, CAPEU sent Assoc. Prof. Dr. Qismullah Yusuf (UPSI) to conduct a one-day Seminar on Pedagogical Contents Knowledge (PCK) for teachers in Aceh Besar District. It was participated by about 40 teachers and 120 students of the Prof. Ali Hasymi's Modelling High school in Sibreh, Aceh Besar, Indonesia.

12). Visit Makassar State University (March 2014)

The purpose of this visit was to discuss Dual Degree Programs between UPSI and Makassar State University in the areas of Psychology, Guidance and Counseling, Special Education and Early Childhood Education. The team met the rector, deans and heads of departments of the university. The visit will be implemented by the end of this year. Detailed discussions are being done between the two universities.

13). Visit Dinas Pendidikan Aceh (March 2014)

The team of CAPEU met Drs. Anas Muhammad Adam, M.Pd, Head of Department of Education of Aceh, for possible collaboration between the Department of Education of Aceh and UPSI in teaching teachers, the training of the principals of lab schools and education administrators. The programs were successfully conducted from July – September 2014 where almost 300 teachers of Aceh were trained at UPSI.

14). First Deakin-UPSI Graduate Symposium (March 2014)

It was a three-day seminar, a Reciprocal Graduate Symposium Program between Deakin University and UPSI. As many as 22 Graduate students from UPSI were sent to Deakin to participate. Deakin reciprocally provided

19). Finalizing Training Program for Aceh (29 April 2014)

The meeting was conducted at the FPPM of UPSI with the team from the Government of Aceh. The purpose of the meeting was to discuss possible collaborations between FPPM and Department of Education of Aceh for sending Principals, Math and Science teachers and Vocational & technical Teachers to be trained at UPSI in the areas of pedagogy, contents, ICT and school management. In implementing the program, Aceh also sent school superintendants to be trained at UPSI and facilitated with school visits to several schools in Malaysia.

20). Facilitating Members with other Networks in Malaysia (30 April 2014)

The team from The Government of Aceh, the Department of Education of Aceh and Syiah Kuala University visited the SEAMEO-SEN in Malacca. CAPEU Office at UPSI provided assistance by taking the guests from the three institutions from Aceh to meet Director of SEAMEO-SEN for possible Collaborations between Syiah Kuala University – UPSI and SEAMEO-SEN. Several programs have now been implemented between Department of Education of Aceh, Syiah Kuala University and SEAMEO-SEN Malaysia.

21). Preparation for Second CAPEU International Conference (2 May 2014)

CAPEU Office received guests from the Kolej University Perguruan Ugama (KUPU) consists of Dr. Adenan bin Haj Basar, Deputy Rector for Academic Affairs of KUPU and Dr. Hunaizi Samiun (Special CAPEU staff of KUPU) for the preparation of the Second Conference in Brunei Darussalam.

22). Meeting with Head of Department of Education of Sabang (30 May 2014)

The head of the Department of Education of Sabang was welcome by Assoc. prof. Dr. Rosnidar Mansor, the Deputy Dean for Research and Innovation of the FPPM UPSI and had a long discussion on the possibility of training 200 teachers of mathematics, English and sciences and about 50 principals and education administrators in Sabang. The training should be conducted at Sabang and the trainers are from UPSI. The programs were given to the FPE UPSI for further communication with the head of Education Department of Sabang.

23). ICTL Conference at Ipoh (26-27 May 2014)

This conference was a conference initiated by the Faculty of Education and Human Development of UPSI. However, in order that the conference be provided with international keynote speakers, CAPEU was asked to invite reputable keynote speakers for the conference. The Dean of the FEHD of UPSI requested help from CAPEU to invite keynotes speakers from partners of CAPEU since the conference will be also participated by many of participants from member universities of CAPEU from Malaysia, Indonesia, Brunei Darussalam, Thailand and several other countries in South East Asian nations. The followings are keynote speakers donated by partners of CAPEU:

- 1). Dr. Namji Steinemann, provided by East-West Center in Hawaii in the USA
- 2). Prof. Dr. Tomonori Ichinose from the Center of International Understanding on Education of Miyagi University of Education.

The conference was held in Ipoh, Perak and participated by more than 500 participants. Several workshops were also conducted during the conference.

24). Providing free half-day seminar to Teachers of School in Ipoh (27 May 2014)

In addition to giving keynote speaker, UPSI also request Dr. Namji Steinnemann, the speaker from East West Center to give special lecture to Special Education School in Ipoh. It was participated by all teachers at the

universities. Many of students who presented their papers at the symposium had shown their leaderships in managing the audiences and in maturing their presentation experiences at the symposium.

30). The Second Conference on Teacher Education (23-24 November 2014)

The conference was hosted by KUPU in Brunei Darussalam and sponsored by the Ministry of Religious Affairs of Brunei Darussalam and the Ministry of Education of Brunei Darussalam. It was officially opened by the Ministry of Religious Affairs and officially closed by the Ministry of Education of Brunei Darussalam. It was a good collaboration between the two ministries.



Brunei Conference 2014

The conference was participated by almost 500 participants from countries in South East Asian nations in addition to participants from CAPEU Members. A resolution was made by the Conference Committee and presented it the two ministers in Brunei Darussalam.

31). The Fourth BoD Meeting at KUPU (November 24, 2014)

The fourth BoD Meeting of CAPEU was conducted at the KUPU (Kolej University Perguruan Ugama) in Brunei Darussalam. It was held at the University Senate Room of KUPU. It was participated by 11 members of the consortium, chaired by the President of CAPEU, the Secretary of CAPEU and the host of the BoD Meeting, Dr. Hajjah Masnon bin Hj. Ibrahim, the Rector of KUPU. The BoD was conducted on November 24, 2014.

32). The Visit to LPDP (November 2014)

As requested by the Vice Chancellor of UPSI, CAPEU designs special programs where scholarships from LPDP can be utilized using normal and regular programs or using special designed program where scholarships of LPDP can be used to send students from Indonesia and pursue their studies at UPSI. However, they must conduct their internships at Sabah and Sarawak to assist the drop outs of school-aged pupils in the two states. This program had been discussed three times between the VC of UPSI and members of CAPEU from Indonesia.

33). The visits of LPDP to UPSI (December 2014)

As from the outcomes of the discussions and meetings, it is agreed upon that parts of the scholarships will be provided for "special scholarships" for Indonesian students where part of the scholarships will be for conducting teaching practices at Sabah and Sarawak.

34). Meeting at Indonesian Embassy in Kuala Lumpur (February 2015).

The Secretariat of CAPEU was invited by the Indonesian Education Attache at the Embassy of Indonesia in Kuala Lumpur. The purpose was to plan, design and implement special scholarships from LPDP and be used for the internships in teaching practices in Sabah and Sarawak. Students from Indonesia will receive scholarships from LPDP but they have to conduct at least 6 months teaching practices in the states.

- 1). Indonesian Education Attache
- 2). Prof. Dr. Sunaryo Kartasasmita
- 3). Prof. Dr. Aminuddin
- 4). Dean, Faculty of Education
- 5). Dean, Graduate School of UPI
- 6). All three deputy dean of the Faculty of Education of UPI
- 7). Secretariat of CAPEU

40). The Journal of Education of CAPEU (April 14, 2015)

The Secretariat of CAPEU, assisted by Dr. Kway, has successfully compiled 12 articles to be published in the Journal of Education of CAPEU. The articles have been initially reviewed by Dr. Kway and will be reviewed by Prof. Dr. Ian Robottom and Prof. Dr. James Campbell from Deakin University in Australia. It will be published by next month and hopefully can be launched at the Fifth BoD meeting at Deakin in Melbourne. The proposed Editorial Boards for the journal are as follows:

| No | Country | Name | Name of Institution |
|----|-----------|----------------------------------|------------------------------|
| 1 | Thailand | Prof. Dr. Suwimon Udom-pitiyasak | Suan Dust Rajabat University |
| 2 | Indonesia | Dr. Mujoto A.K | Surabaya State University |
| 3 | Malaysia | Prof. Dr. Loh Sau Cheong | University of Malaya |

The journal will be launched at the Universitas Negeri Yogjakarta in Yogjakarta by the President of CAPEU.

41. Meeting with the Management of Al-Muslem University in Bireuen (August 26, 205)

This private university is the second oldest university in Aceh, established in 1928 by a leading hulubalang in association with Muslem scholars during the Dutch Colonial Government. The university has 17,000 students with about 1,000 teaching staff and administrative staff. The faculty has 6 faculties with 41 study programs. It is located about 240 km to the east of Banda Aceh. This university is interested in developing collaboration with members of CAPEU in Malaysia through UPSI.

42. Meeting with the Rector of STAIN Gajah Puteh in Takengon(August 27, 2015)

As the only state university in Central Aceh, this university is also interested in developing collaborations with members of CAPEU in Malaysia for improving the quality of Teacher Training Programs at the University. This university is also interested in developing ties with Deakin University to develop the quality of its English Education Program to improve the quality of English education in the five district nearby the university. Fifteen of its teaching staff are the graduate or UPSI and Deakin University.

43. Meeting with the Director of STKIP Bina Bangsa (August 29, 2015)

This is the only Sekolah Tinggi (Higher Institution) that is interested to sign an MoU with CAPEU. This institute will be developing its collaboration with members in Malaysia and also with Deakin University since most of the teaching staff members are the graduates of UPSI, UM, UUM and Deakin University.

44. Meeting the Wife of the Governor of Aceh (August 29, 2015)

This First Lady of the Province of Aceh is planning to upgrade the quality of early Childhood education in her province by collaborating all kindergarten in the Capital City of the Province with the National Child Development Research Center at UPSI and with other members that have programs in Early Childhood Education. A group of 32 principals of kindergarten from the province will be visiting NCDRC at UPSI to develop formal ties with UPSI and other members of CAPEU.



ROUND TABLE & ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING THE CONSORTIUM OF ASIA PACIFIC EDUCATION UNIVERSITIES (CAPEU)

Date

.

MAY 11, 2015

Time

: 9.00 am – 4:00 pm

Venue

The Melbourne City Centre, 3rd Floor of The Deloitte Building

ATTENDANCE

| No. | Name/E-mail | Position | Institution | Sign. |
|-----|--|-------------------------------|-------------------|--------|
| 1. | BADIA PERIZADE rektor@ unsri, ac.id. | Rector | UNIV. SRIWIDAYA | Jan |
| 2. | SOFENDI Sofendieyahoo-com | DEAN OF EDUCATION UNSRI | UNIV. BRWITHIN | Ful |
| 3. | apridar@yahoo.com | Rector | unix. Matikussald | 19 |
| 4, | hetrol 470 yahoo. com | NEA-D OF DUALITY ASSURA | UNIV MALIKUSSALE | Quella |
| 5, | MOHD / JAM GHAZAL/ mizan@uym.edu.my | bear of school of Edu | uum laklos | D |
| 6. | MIZANE UM. Edu. MY TESTER BIOGENAL PHILIPPINE NORMAL NOVERSITY | President | (PNU) | Wase |
| 7. | FELLEUE I. YEBAN | Vice Presiden | PXV | K |
| 8. | LETICIA V. CATRIS | Rean | PNY | WZ |
| 9. | RITA MEUTIA rita mutia @ fe-unimal.og | Leeture | UNIMAL | Wy |
| 10. | Ari Purbayanto purbayanto @ipb.ac.id | Deliver Atta | lutubassy. | |
| | L. | Knowle Ling | u | 1 |

| No. | Name | Position | Institution | Sign. | |
|-----|-----------------------------------|--|--|-----------|-------------|
| 11. | DR HJ ADANAN | Peputy Raine KUMV-SIS | Kupu-sa | Slik | - |
| 12. | Ahmad Humaizi bin Hali Samihan | KNDN 28-CAPEN Office C CAMMUNICATION | Kolej Universih Arguman Ugama Seri Bagawan | Quality. | |
| 13. | AMUR HASNW DAWN | DENN Sprention | 1001 | 00 | _ |
| 14. | VOOR SUDH FAMIS | DIRECCOR TEACHINA Pract | ice ups - | me | |
| 15. | Duto De Noraini Idn | raining Depive | • | | |
| | Date PNJ Zahari- lea | | ups | Zaln | |
| 17. | Qismullah Yusuf | CAPEU/ UPSI | upsì | Oseal | ā |
| 18. | James Campbell | Dealin | Dealin | Canplel | |
| 19. | Ian Robottom | Dealmi | Dealin \ | to wollow | |
| 20. | Anne Roubin | Doalin | Dealein | Skoul | \setminus |
| 21. | Siti Eishah Modensin | Dealin / UPSi | Dealerin/ UPSi | | |
| 22. | | | | | |
| 23. | | | | | |
| 24. | | | | | |
| 25. | | | | | |



ROUND TABLE & ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING THE CONSORTIUM OF ASIA PACIFIC EDUCATION UNIVERSITIES (CAPEU)

Date

MAY 12, 2015

Time

9.00 am - 4:00 pm

Venue

The Melbourne City Centre, 3rd Floor of The Deloitte Building

ATTENDANCE

| No. | Name/E-mail | Position | Institution | Sjgn. |
|-----|------------------------------------|---|-------------|--------|
| | Prof. Dr. Dato Zakaria Kasa | President of CAPEU/Vey UPSi | UPSI | 3Mz |
| 2, | Prof. Dr. Dato' Noraini Idris | Secretary of BOD of CAPEUT TNCPT | ups; | Omi |
| 3. | Prof. Dr. Noor shah saad | Treasurer of BOD of CAPEUL PULAMI UPSI | upsi | Mars |
| 4, | Prof. Dr. Amir Hasan Dawi | Dean of Fac. of Education of Upsi | s upsi | Ge |
| 5. | Gismullah Yusuf | Secretariat of CAPEU/FPPM of Ursi | upsi | Oriena |
| 6. | OR HAJI ADANAN | DEPUTY RA'ES KUPU KIS | Kupusk | Will |
| 7≗ | Ahmad Humaiei bin Haji' Samihon | Communication Officer Kupusb -Capeu | knln sb | 200 |
| 8, | PROF. SOFENDI, M.A., PR.D. | DEAN OF FAC. OF TEACHER TRAINING AND EDUCATION | UNSRI | Aus |
| 9. | BADIA PERIZADE | rector of Sriwinaya Univ. | Unsri | Sahi |
| 10. | ASCOC. Prof. Or. MOHS IZAM CHAZALI | School of Education and | , cum | A |

| No. | Name | Position | Institution | Sign. |
|-----|-------------------|------------------------------------|--|-------|
| 11. | ESTER B. OGENA | President | Philippine Normal University | wace |
| 12. | FELIECE J. YERAN | VP | Philippine Normal University | R |
| 13. | LETICIA V. CATRIS | Dean, Colleg of Teacher Do | 1/ 1/ 1/ 1/ 1/ 1/ 1/ 1/ 1/ 1/ 1/ 1/ 1/ 1 | |
| 14. | ACE SURYADI | Dir. Centr fr And study | s UPI | # |
| 15. | SRI HARTO | Director, Intl. Office | UPI, Indonesia | Smi |
| 16. | FUAD ABOUL HAMIED | Chair, Council of Professors | UPI, Indonesia | Sta |
| | JAMES CAMPBELL | Lecturer. | Beatin Un. | Jc. |
| 18. | AMIR HASAN DAWI | Eduation | URSI | 90 |
| 19. | ARI PURBAYANTO | Entra Attachi | Indonesia. Embacay Kuala Lunpur | V |
| 20. | APRIDAR | RELTOR | UNIV. MALITUSSALE | 1 19 |
| 21. | MOHD, HEIKAL | QA HEAD DEPT | UMV. MALIKUSSALE | 20 - |
| 22. | | | | |
| 23. | | | | |
| 24. | | | | |
| 25. | | | | |